HANVEY GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EREREZERERQT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(MREEEEEMAZNERLT])
Stock Code IR X5% : 8219

D

2019

Annual Report F#f

v
-



GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibilities for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Hanvey
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquires, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report
is accurate and complete in all material aspects and not misleading
or deceptive and there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Hanvey Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's revenue
amounted to approximately HK$198.05 million, increased by
approximately 8.53% when compared with the corresponding period
of 2018. The increase is primarily due to increased sales order from
Southeast Asia Market.

According to the Hong Kong Trade Development Council’s
("HKTDC") research "HKTDC Export Index 4Q19: Lingering China-
US Trade Tensions Push Export Sentiment to Record-Low” dated 18
December 2019, the HKTDC Export Index plunged from 35.2 in 4Q
2018 to 18.8 in 4Q19, a further drop and the lowest overall figure
ever recorded by the Index. This can be taken as a strong indication
that Hong Kong's export growth will remain sluggish over the near-
term. In all, every major industry sub-index stayed well below the
watershed mark of 50, suggesting that pessimism prevails in every
export sector at present. In the case of the timepieces (15.5) sectors,
their 4Q19 indices were new all-time lows.

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

Following its weakest performance since the global financial
crisis, the world economy is poised for a modest rebound in
2020. Market sentiment has been boosted by tentative signs:
intermittent favourable news on the United States-mainland China
trade negotiations, central banks’ shifting toward accommodative
monetary policy, and diminished fears of a no-deal Brexit.

2020 will be a challenging year. However, the outbreak of the
novel coronavirus (COVID-19) infection is casting an adverse impact
to the world with social and economic activities mostly halted in
the seriously affected country. Economic growth is facing huge
challenge.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRBE

We intend to continue to focus on the core business, take efforts
in strengthening our product design and development capability
in order to maximise the long term returns of the shareholders of
the Company. The Group will closely observe the market trend and
provide designs that suit the customer and market needs. At the
same time, we will also consider the opportunities associated with the
COVID-19 global outbreak and explore actively while cautiously what
the Group is capable of doing to combat this global incident.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
Board for its excellent leadership, to the Company’s shareholders
for their strong support and guidance, and to the community for
their enthusiastic help, and last but not least, to our staff for their
dedicated efforts and brilliant ideas.

CHEUK Sin Cheong Clement
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 April 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DA

OVERVIEW

The Group are principally engaged in design and development,
manufacturing and distribution of watch products on original design
manufacturing (“ODM") basis for watch manufacturers, brand
owners and watch importers across the globe.

The Group derives revenue mainly from the sale of: (i) finished
watches, (i) semi-knocked-down kit, and (iii) watch parts.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s revenue
amounted to approximately HK$198.05 million, increased by
approximately 8.53% when compared with the corresponding period
of 2018. Although the continuous trade war between the United
States of America (the “US") and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") brings more turmoil to the global economics, we manage to
maintain to slightly increase the revenue level due to our diversified
customer base across the globe, especially in Southeast Asia.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s revenue
amounted to approximately HK$198.05 million, increased by
approximately 8.53% when compared with the corresponding period
of 2018. The increase is primarily due to increased sales order from
Southeast Asia market.

According to the HKTDC's research “HKTDC Export Index 4Q19:
Lingering China-US Trade Tensions Push Export Sentiment to
Record-Low” dated 18 December 2019, the HKTDC Export Index
plunged from 35.2 in 4Q18 to 18.8 in 4Q19, a further drop and
the lowest overall figure ever recorded by the Index. This can be
taken as a strong indication that Hong Kong’s export growth will
remain sluggish over the near-term. In all, every major industry sub-
index stayed well below the watershed mark of 50, suggesting that
pessimism prevails in every export sector at present. In the case of the
timepieces (15.5) sectors, their 4Q19 indices were new all-time lows.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately HK$15.57
million or approximately 8.53% from approximately HK$182.48
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
HK$198.05 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
increase in revenue was mainly due to increase of sales demand of
ODM watches during 2019.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales was consistent with the revenue increased by
approximately HK$19.89 million or 15.56% from approximately
HK$127.85 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately HK$147.74 million for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit decreased by approximately HK$4.32 million or
approximately 7.91% from approximately HK$54.63 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately HK$50.31 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 mainly due to increase in cost
of sales, which the Group was not able to pass on to customers due
to the increased competition in the industry, especially during the US-
PRC trade war, which is also accounted for the decreased gross profit
margin from 29.94% to 25.40%.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
HK$0.65 million or approximately 10.85% from approximately
HK$5.99 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately HK$5.34 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in commission
related to our sales to European customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmE DM

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$15.88
million or approximately 41.70% from approximately HK$38.08
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
HK$53.96 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
increase was primarily due to (i) the increase in staff cost as a result
of, among others, increment of salaries and distribution of bonus to
staff; (i) the increase in legal and professional fees due to maintaining
of the listing status of the Company; (iii) the increase in entertainment
expenses resulting from the need for the Directors to travel more in
order to actively pitch for orders and reach out to potential customers
due to the increase of competition in the industry; and (iv) increase in
the Group’s charitable donation.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased by approximately HK$0.15 million or
approximately 3.62% from approximately HK$4.14 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately HK$3.99 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease was mainly due to
the decrease in bank borrowings.

Loss before taxation

We recorded a loss before taxation of approximately HK$13.87
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 as compared to that
of approximately HK$4.50 million for the year ended 31 December
2018.

Taxation

Our income tax expenses decreased by approximately HK$1.92
million or approximately 73.85% from approximately HK$2.60
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
HK$0.68 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in taxable profit of a Hong Kong
subsidiary.

Loss for the year

As a result of the foregoing, we recorded a loss for the year of
approximately HK$14.55 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 as compared to approximately HK$7.10 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmR DM

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

Following its weakest performance since the global financial crisis,
the world economy is poised for a modest rebound in 2020.
Market sentiment has been boosted by tentative signs: intermittent
favourable news on the US-PRC trade negotiations, central banks’
shifting toward accommodative monetary policy, and diminished
fears of a no-deal Brexit.

2020 will be a challenging year. However, the outbreak of the
novel coronavirus (COVID-19) infection is casting an adverse impact
to the world with social and economic activities mostly halted in
the seriously affected country. Economic growth is facing huge
challenge.

We intend to continue to focus on the core business, take efforts
in strengthening our product design and development capability
in order to maximise the long term returns of the shareholders of
the Company. The Group will closely observe the market trend and
provide designs that suit the customer and market needs. At the
same time, we will also consider the opportunities associated with the
COVID-19 global outbreak and explore actively while cautiously what
the Group is capable of doing to combat this global incident.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the Company’s capital structure for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The capital structure of the Group
comprises of issued share capital and reserves. The Directors review
the Group’s capital structure regularly.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$22.19 million (2018: HK$40.33 million). The
current ratios (current asset divided by current liabilities) of the Group
were 1.09 times and 1.22 times as at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018 respectively.

The Directors are of the view that at the date hereof, the Group’s
financial resources are sufficient to support its business and
operations.

As at 31 December 2019, the gearing ratio of the Group calculated
by total bank borrowings as a percentage of total equity was
approximately 134.86%. (2018: 102.41%)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no capital commitments.

CHARGE OVER GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the following assets were pledged to bank
to secure the Group’s banking facilities:

AE
HZE2019F12A318  KEBEWELM
B IEIE o

AEBEEHT
2019412 A31H » THEERKIFFIRT
EAREBRITRIBMER

HK$'000

FAET

Property, plant and equipment W - WERE 23,422
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EAFEFTABZNESREE 17,348
Investment properties REYE 14,200
Pledged bank deposits EEARITIENR 6,718
61,688

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group's purchases are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. The
sales of the Group are predominantly in US Dollars, Renminbi and
Hong Kong Dollars. The Group will review and monitor from time to
time the risk relating to foreign exchanges.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group neither took
part in any derivatives activities nor entered into any hedging activities
in respect of foreign exchange risk.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2019 (2018: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmR DM

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, we had a total of 166 employees (2018:
178). The Company determines employee salaries based on each
employee’s qualifications, position and seniority. Our Group has
established an annual review system to assess the performance of our
employees, which forms the basis of our decisions with respect to
salary raises, bonuses and promotions.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Board after
recommendation from the remuneration committee of the Company,
having considered the factors such as the Group’s financial
performance, the achievement of special targets and the individual
performance of the Directors, etc.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(@ On 26 March 2020, a subsidiary of the Company entered into
a non-legally binding memorandum of understanding (the
“MOQOU") with the shareholders (the “Vendors”) of Innovative
Corporate Development Limited (# &> ¥R B R A A]) (the
“Target Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Target
Group”), pursuant to which the Company intends to acquire
and the Vendors intend to sell 51% of the issued share capital of
the Target Company. The Target Group is principally engaged in
the business of production and sale of disposable face masks in
Hong Kong (the “Intended Transaction”).

(b) The coronavirus disease 2019 outbreak since early 2020 has
brought additional uncertainties in the global macroeconomic
situation. The Group’s financial performance may have impact.
The degree of impact could not be reasonably estimated at this
stage. The Group will closely monitor the development of the
epidemic and assess its impact on the financial position and
operating results of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmE DM

USE OF PROCEEDS

During the period from the listing of the shares of the Company on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”) on 12 July 2018 (the
“Listing Date”) to 31 December 2019, the Group has applied the
net proceeds as follows:

FRERERZ

BARRNRIMMAR2018F7 128 (I LWAH
) EBZFGEM EH ([ £ ) 2019
F12 4318 AEEFERMABRIBEFEN

T

Expected

timeline for

the unutilised

net proceeds

to be utilised

(Note 1)

FERERET

ABRRIEN

BEHFERERE

(GES)

for the

Amount Amount six months

utilised unutilised period from

up to asat  1January 2020

31 December 31 December to 30 June

Allocation 2019 2019 2020

HZ2019F HZ2019F 2020F1A818%

12A31H 12318 202066 830A

PEE EHANGE ABRANEE #A1EA

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR T FAEL FHL

Acquisition of new production facilities 5 & %4 & & e 21,629 21,629 - -

Expansion of e-commerce customer base BAEFHHEFE 2,739 1,862 877 877

Strengthening of design capabilities A1 RET4E ) 2,200 2,200 - -

Repayment of bank loan BRRTER 7422 7422 - -

Working capital LEES 480 360 120 120

Total @it 34,470 33,473 997 997
Notes: i

1. The expected timeline for utilising the unutilised net proceeds is based on the
best estimation of the future market conditions made by the Group. It will be
subject to change based on the current and future development of market
conditions.

At the date of this report, the remaining balance of net proceeds from
the Listing are deposited in a licensed bank in Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

COMPARISON BETWEEN BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

EREGRHEREBER LR

AND ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

The following is a comparison between the Group’s business plans as
set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 June 2018 (the
"Prospectus”) and the Group’s actual business progress for the year

ended 31 December 2019:

Business plan for the Year
as set out in the Prospectus

ERERFEMFEXKTE

ARElHHA2018F 6 A28 A2 HlRER
([BRER] IS AEEEREEEE
2019F 12 A3MBILFEZAEBERE
HERZLLBRWMT

Actual business progress as at 31 December 2019

R2019F 12831 B2 EREKER

Repayment of bank loan
EERITER

Expansion of e-commerce
customer base

BAEFHBEEPE

Strengthening of design
capabilities

ISR R ETRE S

Acquisition of new production
facilities

BEMNLEERE

The Group has repaid HK$7.4 million bank loan in 2018, being the full amount of
use of proceeds allocated for this purpose as set out in the Prospectus.
REBER2018FEE7TABERBTRITER (ANBREEFMFAERIERE
SEELAZEN2EE) -

In 2018 and 2019, the Group hired new graphic designers, product engineers,
R&D staff and marketing staff and purchased hardware & software for new staff.
In 2020, the Group will continue to hire new graphic designers and R&D staff to
expand of e-commerce customer base.

20184F }: 20194F - AL EIEF & T ERATAD - o TIZAD - FEEA 8 I
BAB  WANEIHEEREM - 2020F - AEESEERFHN FERA
RItEANE  NBARETREABEFE -

During the year, the Group purchased of a new Metal 3D printer and certain
ancillary products to the printer for an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$2.1 million to strengthen of design capabilities.

FA - AEELRRELN 2.1 BEBTEENN S E 3D TN KE T DA
EEm - AINsRERETEES -

The Group deposited RMB17,928,530.00 (equivalent to approximately
HK$20,438,524.20 to acquire a new factory in 2019 located in the Shenzhen
city, the consideration RMB27,928,530.00 (equivalent to approximately
HK$31,838,524.20), being the aggregate purchase price of the properties (inclusive
of value added tax). The properties comprise three units, namely Unit 801, Unit 802
and Unit 803, 8th Floor, Block 1, Innovation Wisdom Port, Huangpu Nandong Ziron
Village, Shejing Town, Baoan District, Shenzhen City, the PRC, which has a gross
floor area of approximately 350.45 square meter, 357.85 square meter and 326.09
square meter, respectively (in aggregate approximately 1,034.39 square meter).
REBEIAANRY17,928,530.00 7T (HHE 70 4720,438,524.20 B L) ERIRE » ¥
2019 F A E AR 27,928,530.00 7T (#HE 10 4931,838,524.20/87T) (AR &
MERER(SBER)) KB R TH—KFT LK - WEBE=(EEL -
BRBRNTELRRADHEEHERNE ANEF S B EBERXR 1158880158
F5 ~ 80257 55 % 803 5% /5 * 42 E 15 D Bl 49 43350.45F 75 K ~ 357.85F J5 K
%.326.09F 73K (A ##91,034.39F 5 K) -

Because of the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19), the acquisition of the
new factory is still pending to obtain the property ownership certificate.
B FT AL TSR B (COVID-19) 1@ 3+ WHE T TR DT ERIS M R -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE

COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Save as disclosed in the annual report, there was no significant
investment, material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures by the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, the announcement of the
Company dated 26 March 2020 and this annual report, the Group
did not have other plans for material investments or capital assets for
the coming year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) by way of written resolutions
passed on 20 June 2018. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on the date it
was adopted. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to participants for their contribution to our
Group and/or to enable our Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to our
Group and any entity in which our Group holds any equity interest
(“Invested Entity").

Annual Report 2019 %
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmR DM

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include (a) any
employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries and any Invested
Entity; (b) any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive directors) of our Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity; (c) any supplier of goods or services to any member
of our Group or any Invested Entity; (d) any customer of our Group
or any Invested Entity; (e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to our Group or any
Invested Entity; (f) any shareholder of any member of our Group
or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of our Group or any Invested Entity; (g) any adviser
(professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or
business development of our Group or any Invested Entity; and (h)
any other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute, by way of joint venture, business alliance, other
business arrangement or otherwise, to the development and growth
of our Group.

Ordinary shares of the Company (“Share(s)”) may be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme. The total number of Shares which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue
on the Listing Date, which was 100,000,000 Shares, representing
approximately 10% of Shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report. The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company (or the subsidiaries) from time to
time.

BREAINAERZEERTE@AR
A BEMHEARREAREEERR
ER2BREES  BRETANTES:
(o) RAT] - ALK B A RS RIE
BERNEFFENATES (BREBILIFATT
BF) (0 MAEBEERMNKE QR SHEREK
REBRREHERIRG ZEFHER
AEEHEMEREERZERES
(@) MAKB ST AR E BEREMHRE -
REEMRTS 2 EMALRER
OAEEERKE QB RERMBEIRE EE
ZAEIBR RS A KB IR B A R S
WRIREBRAETZEANRS ZERNREE
A (QAEEHEMPIRERR ZERME
E iR TS I R 2 (AR (F sk E A
JTHE) KA AERE  REZKAEES
BhE  EHBBREMER LI EM
FAEAREENBRMIERELREROE
MEMbAER S IERI 2 EE -

RARIER (TRH ) A se ATTERIERE
A&t B35 ) B BB AR A i AL B8 J2 3547 - AT AE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmE DM

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group (including both
exercised, cancelled or outstanding options) to each participant in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of Share in issue for the
time being. Any further grant of options in excess of such limit in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
shall be subject to Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the
Company with such participant and his/her close associates (or his/her
associates if such Participant is a connected person) abstaining from
voting. An offer of the grant of an option under the Share Option
Scheme may be accepted within 21 days from the date of grant
together with a remittance of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for
the grant thereof. An option may be exercised during such period
as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such
period shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless
the Directors otherwise determine and state in the offer to a grantee,
a grantee is not required to hold an option for any minimum period
nor achieve any performance targets before any options granted
under the Share Option Scheme can be exercised. The subscription
price for the Shares on the exercise of the option shall be determined
at the discretion of the Board which shall not be less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the grant of the option, which
must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
option; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share.

Please refer to paragraph headed “D. Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix V of the Prospectus for more details of the Share Option
Scheme. No share option has been granted, exercised , cancelled or
lapsed by the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme during
the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this annual
report.

PMER+ =8 A B A 2 8 21T A g
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFNWR DN

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors were not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors nor the controlling Shareholder nor their respective
associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) that competed or
might compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict
of interest which any such person had or might have with the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the controlling Shareholders has made an annual declaration
to the Company that during the year ended 31 December
2019, he/she/it has complied with the terms of non-competition
undertakings (“Non-Competition Undertakings”) given in favour
of the Company. The independent non-executive Directors have
also reviewed the status of compliance by each of the controlling
Shareholders with the undertakings stipulated in the Non-
Competition Undertakings and have confirmed that, as far as the
independent non-executive Directors can ascertain, there is no breach
of any of such undertaking.

INTEREST OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As at 31 December 2019, except for the compliance adviser
agreement entered into between the Company and TC Capital
International Limited (“TC Capital”) dated 23 February 2018, neither
TC Capital nor any of its directors, employees or close associates had
any interest in the securities of the Company or any member of the
Group (including options or rights to subscribe for such securities, if
any) pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND

The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board is of the view that the Company has met the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
"Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2019, except
for the deviation as specified and explained below with considered
reasons for such deviations.

R
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EEENWmE DM

Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code stipulates that
the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Cheuk Sin
Cheong Clement is currently the chairman of our Board and the
chief executive officer of our Company. In view that Mr. Cheuk has
been assuming day-to-day responsibilities in operating and managing
our Group since 1986 and the rapid development of our Group,
the Board believes that with the support of Mr. Cheuk’s extensive
experience and knowledge in the business of the Group, vesting
the roles of both chairman of our Board and chief executive officer
of our Company in Mr. Cheuk strengthens the solid and consistent
leadership and thereby allows for efficient business planning and
decision which is in the best interest to our Group.

The Directors consider that the deviation from provision A.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code is appropriate in such circumstances.
Notwithstanding the above, the Board is of the view that this
management structure is effective for our Group’s operations, and
sufficient checks and balances are in place.

Provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code requires that
independent non-executive Directors and other non-executive
Directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. Zhao Zhipeng (an
independent non-executive Director) did not attend the annual
general meeting held during the year ended 31 December 2019
because he had other commitment on the date of the annual general
meeting.

Except for code provision A.2.1 and A.6.7 of the Corporate
Governance Code, our Company’s corporate governance practices
have complied with the Corporate Governance Code during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirms
that the Directors complied with required standard of dealings and its
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors during
the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Corporate Governance Report

TRER/RS

The Company has adopted the principles and the code provisions
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Company had complied with the CG Code, except
where otherwise stated.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirms
that the Directors complied with required standard of dealings and its
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group, and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board is primarily responsible for overall business
plans and strategies of the Group, the implementation of the Group’s
policies and strategies, monitoring the business performance,
internal controls and risk management as well as supervising the
management of the Group.

The Board delegates daily management, administration and
operation of the Group to the management. The delegated functions
are reviewed by the Board to ensure that they accommodate the
needs of the Group.
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EXRER®RSE

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises seven
Directors, including three executive Directors and four independent
non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board is set out as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement (Chairman)
Ms. Au Corona Ching Mei M.H.

Ms. Cheuk Heide Oil-gei

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Yu Sau Ning Homer M.H.

Mr. Zhao Zhipeng

Ms. Yee Wai Fong Wendy

Dr. Liu Ngai Wing (appointed on 1 April 2019)

Biographical details of each Director and relationship between board
members are set out on page 32 to page 39 of this annual report.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The Directors have the power to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the
existing Board. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of members after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed as an addition to the existing board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. The Directors to retire by
rotation shall include any Director who wishes to retire and not offer
himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be
those who have been longest in office since their last re-election or
appointment but as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day those to retire will (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.
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EXRER®RE

DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”) monitors the implementation of the board diversity
policy to ensure the effectiveness of the Board diversity policy.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer
should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement is currently the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company, responsible
for formulating the overall business development strategy and
planning of the Group. In view that Mr. Cheuk has been responsible
for the overall management of the Group since its inception, the
Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Cheuk taking up both roles for effective management and business
development.

The Board considers that the balance of power and authority,
accountability and independent decision-making under our present
arrangement will not be impaired because of the diverse background
and experience of the other executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors.

Further, the audit committee of the Company (” Audit Committee”)
has free and direct access to the Company’s external auditors and
independent professional advisers when it considers necessary.
Therefore, the Directors consider that the deviation from code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstance.
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In order to maintain good corporate governance and to fully comply
with code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board comprises six
other experienced and high-calibre individuals including two other
executive Directors and four independent non-executive Directors
who would be able to offer advice from various perspectives. In
addition, for major decisions of the Group, the Company will
consult appropriate Board committees and senior management.
Considering the present size and the scope of business of the Group,
we consider that it is not in the best interest of the Company and
the shareholders as a whole to separate the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer, because the separation would render
the decision-making process of the Company less efficient than the
current structure. Therefore, the Directors consider that the present
arrangement is beneficial to and in the interest of the Company and
the shareholders as a whole and the deviation from code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstance.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors, with at least one of them have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company for a specific terms of three
years and is subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Articles.
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The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the paragraph C.3 and D.3 of CG Code. The Audit Committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors namely Mr.
Yu Sau Ning Homer M.H., Mr. Zhao Zhipeng and Ms. Yee Wai Fong
Wendy. Mr. Yu Sau Ning Homer M.H. is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
system, to oversee the audit process, to perform the corporate
governance function and other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting standards and practices adopted by the
Group, and discussing auditing, internal control, risk management
and financial reporting matters including the review of annual results
and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
review of result for three months ended 31 March 2019, six months
ended 30 June 2019 and nine months ended 30 September 2019.

The Company established a remuneration committee of the
Company (“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee consists of one executive Director namely
Ms. Cheuk Heide Qil-gei and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhao Zhipeng and Mr. Yu Sau Ning Homer
M.H.. Mr. Zhao Zhipeng is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, The primary duties of the remuneration committee
include (but without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the
Directors on the policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policies on such remuneration;
(i) determining the terms of the specific remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management; and (iii) reviewing and approving
performance-based remuneration with reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Directors from time to time.

Two Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the
Relevant Period to review the remuneration structure of the Directors
and make recommendation on the adjusted remuneration packages
to the executive Directors. Details of the attendance records of each
Remuneration Committee members are set out on page 26 of this
annual report.
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The Company also established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5 of the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director namely
Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yu Sau Ning Homer M.H. and Ms. Yee Wai
Fong Wendy. Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The primary function of the Nomination
Committee is to, inter alia, make recommendations to the Board to
fill vacancies on the same. The secretary of the Company shall call a
meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite nominations of
candidates from Board members for consideration by the Nomination
Committee.

The Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by Board members. The factors which would
be used as reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing
the suitability of a proposed candidate for Director include, inter
alia, reputation for integrity, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy, willingness to devote adequate time
to discharge duties as Board member, diversity of the Board, and
such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business. The
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.

During the Relevant Period, one Nomination Committee meeting
was held to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board by reference to the criteria as mentioned above, assess the
independence of the INEDs and make recommendation on the
re-election of the Directors at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 17 June 2019.

For a regular Board meeting, at least 14 days' notice will be given
to the Board members. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notices are generally given. An agenda and Board papers
of the regular meeting are sent to all Directors in advance within
reasonable time and all Directors are free to contribute and share
their views at the meeting. Minutes of all Board and committee
meetings are circulated to the Directors and open for inspection by
the Directors.

The Articles contains provisions requiring the Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving any contract or arrangement or any other proposal in
which such Directors or any of their close associates have a material
interest.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings, audit
committee meeting, nomination committee meeting, remuneration
committee meeting and annual general meeting of the Company
held for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the table
below:

EEHFELEREEEHAE

BEERBEARGHEHE2019F12A31H8
HFERITHNEESYR  BZEEgQ
EOREXLECCR FWNZECOH

BRBFERNG N LERERTIR TR -

Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting meeting
L ES888 ENZRT93 RAZE993 FHWZEREEE RREEFAE
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement  £EE%4E 6/6 N/A TR 11 N/A TR 1/1
Ms. Au Corona Ching Mei MH. ~ BREFEZ L MH. 6/6 NA T @R NA TiER NA TiER i
Ms. Cheuk Heide Oil-gei Lk Ten 6/6 NA T ER NA TNER 22 /1
Independent Non-Executive ~ BUFHTEES
Directors
Mr. YuSauNing Homer MH.  HEZ%4 MH. 56 34 11 22 11
Mr. Zhao Zhipeng BERRE 6/6 414 NA TR 22 0/
Ms. Yee Wai Fong Wendy REART 6/6 414 11 NA R iE 1/1
Dr. Liu Ngai Wing BREET(R20195
(appointed on 1 April 2019) 4A1BEZM) 5/6 N/A TR NATER N/A g 1/1
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS e A=Y

According to code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Company.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, continuous professional development of Directors,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules,
and the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group has selected suitable accounting policies in
accordance with accounting principles and applied them consistently.
A statement by the auditors of the Company about its responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the independent auditors’
report contained in this annual report. The Directors adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial statements
and are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

OF THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 under Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules, all Directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. For the year ended 31 December 2019, all Directors and a
majority of the senior management of the Group received induction
trainings from the Company’s Hong Kong legal adviser in respect
of the ongoing obligations, duties and responsibilities of Directors
of publicly listed companies in Hong Kong under the Companies
Ordinance, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the
GEM Listing Rules.

The Company will from time to time provide briefings to all Directors
to refresh their duties and responsibilities. The Directors are also
encouraged to attend relevant training courses provided by legal
advisers and/or any appropriate institutions.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Xie Xing is the company secretary of the Company. Please refer to
the section headed "Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report for the biographical details of the
company secretary of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Xie has undertaken not

less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance
with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

The Company engaged HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as its
auditors for the year ended 31 December 2019. The analysis of the
auditors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set
out as follow:

¥ B B i A
AAFIEZERGSMELAERA A
BEEHEEZ2019F12 A3 HILFEMNZ
HEh - B E2019F 12 A31B L FE 2 #
HENFHB AT T

Amount of

Type of services provided by external auditors fees
SN IR BT R AR IS E A
HK$'000

FHET

Audit services BNk 860
Non-audit service EEZR -
Total Bt 860

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board has responsibility for maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The
Board has delegated responsibility to the Audit Committee to review
the Group’s risk management and internal control matters annually.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not have an
internal audit function as required under code provision C.2.5 of
the CG Code. The Company has engaged an external independent
internal control consultant to review the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee reviewed the
internal control review report issued by the external independent
consultant on the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 and
considered that they are effective and adequate. The Board assessed
the effectiveness of internal control systems by considering the
internal control review report and reviews performed by the Audit
Committee and concurred the same.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of SFO and the GEM Listing
Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon
as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of
the safe harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the information
is fully disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the information
is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary
degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality
may have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure that
information contained in announcements are not false or misleading
as to a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a
material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced
way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative
facts.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the interests of the
shareholder of the Company and prudent capital management with
a sustainable dividend policy. In proposing any dividend payout, the
Board shall also take into account, inter alia:

1. the actual and expected financial performance of the Group;

2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the other members of the Group;

3. economic conditions and other internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Group;

4. business strategies of the Group, including future cash
commitments and investment needs to sustain the long-term

growth aspect of the business;

5. the current and future operations, liquidity position and capital
requirements of the Group;

6. statutory and regulatory restrictions; and
7. other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board will review the dividend policy as appropriate from time to
time.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SUCH MEETING

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings shall at all time have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

To ensure that the shareholders and potential investors are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, the Company has established
several channels to communicate with the shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports, quarterly reports and circulars are issued in printed
form and are available on the website of the Stock Exchange
at www.hkexnews.hk and on the website of the Company at
www.hanveygroup.com.hk;

(i) periodic announcements are published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iiiy corporate information is made available on the Company’s
website; and

(iv) annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum for
the shareholders to make comments and exchange views with
the Directors and senior management.
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The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential
investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and
the public. Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by
post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there has been no change in
the Company’s Memorandum and the Articles.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

EENSREERNBRERE

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement (5 & &), aged 61, is the
chairman of our Board, our founder, our executive Director, one of
our controlling Shareholders and our chief executive officer. He is
also the chairperson of our Nomination Committee. He is a director
of each of the operating subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Cheuk is
primarily responsible for formulating our Group's overall strategy
planning, overseeing sales and marketing, product development, and
overall management of our Group’s business.

Mr. Cheuk has more than 31 years of experience in the watch
industry, particularly in product design development, sales and
marketing. He was the vice chairman of the 17th session of and
chairman of the 18th session of The Federation of Hong Kong Watch
Trades & Industries Limited and an advisor of The Federation of Hong
Kong Watch Trades & Industries Limited since 2000. He was also a
member of Watches and Clocks Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council from 1996 to 2007.

Mr. Cheuk obtained a master's degree of business administration
(executive) from the City University of Hong Kong in November 2001.
He was admitted as an honorary fellow of the Professional Validation
Centre of Hong Kong Business Sector in June 2015. He was also
awarded the Young Industrialist Awards for the year 1998/1999 by
the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council and an awardee member
of the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council in November 1998.
Mr. Cheuk was also a director of the 32nd board of directors of Yan
Oi Tong.

He is the spouse of Ms. Au Corona Ching Mei M.H., father of Ms.
Cheuk Heide Qil-gei and brother-in-law of Ms. Au Hung Wai Didy.

Ms. Au Corona Ching Mei M.H. (“Mrs. Cheuk”) (B#F ), aged
59, is our executive Director, one of our controlling Shareholders
and the legal representative of Shenzhen 3 Wells Watch Company
Limited. She is also a director of each of the operating subsidiaries
of our Group. She is primarily responsible for overseeing our Group’s
administrative, human resources and financial management, and
assisting in the management of our Group’s business.

Mrs. Cheuk has more than 30 years of experience in the watch
industry. Prior to joining our Group, she worked in the finance
department in China Resources Textiles Company Limited from July
1978 to January 1985 and worked as a deputy financial manager in
China Resources Silk Co., Ltd from January 1985 to November 1987.
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Mrs. Cheuk was awarded the China’s Hundred Outstanding Women
Entrepreneurs* (B B & £ H 2B %K) by the China Association
of Woman Entrepreneurs* (F B Z & ¥ R % &) in October 2006
and was awarded the Medal of Honour (MH) by the Government of
the HKSAR in July 2010. She was a director, the vice chairlady and
the chairlady of Yan Oi Tong from 2004 to 2006, 2006 to 2009 and
2009 to 2010 respectively. She was a committee member of the
tenth Hubei Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference* (Bl A RBURHE g M1t E £ +
JEZ& 8 €% 8). She is currently a permanent honorary committee
member of The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, Hong Kong
and a director of Po Leung Kuk.

Mrs. Cheuk obtained a diploma of graduate gemologist from the
Gemological Institute of America in March 2003. Mrs. Cheuk is the
spouse of Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement, mother of Ms. Cheuk
Heide Oil-gei and sister of Ms. Au Hung Wai Didy.

Ms. CHEUK Heide Oil-gei (£ 8l #), aged 31, is our executive
Director and in-house legal counsel. She is currently responsible
for overseeing the sales and marketing and business development,
management of our Group’s business, and advising on legal matters.

Ms. Cheuk has 6 years of experience in the watch industry. Prior
to joining our Group, she worked as a legal intern and paralegal at
Vidler & Co. Solicitors from August 2010 to May 2011 and as a solar
campaign associate at Environment California from August 2012 to
October 2012.

Ms. Cheuk obtained a degree of bachelor of Laws from the University
of Durham in July 2010 and a degree of master of laws from the Duke
University in May 2012. She was admitted to practice as an attorney
and counsellor at law in all courts of the State of New York in June
2017.

Ms. Cheuk is the daughter of Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement and
Mrs. Cheuk and the niece of Ms. Au Hung Wai Didy.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YU Sau Ning Homer M.H. (R & &), aged 67, is our
independent non-executive Director, the chairperson of our Audit
Committee, and a member of our Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. Mr. Yu is responsible for supervising and
providing independent judgment to our Board, Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yu has 41 years of experience in the wholesale and retail markets
of wine and spirit, skincare and household products. He has been
the chief executive officer of Cheong Hing Store Ltd., Cheong Hing
(1917) Limited, Youthful Technology International Ltd. and Youthful
Wonder Limited since 1981, 1981, 1989 and 2014 respectively. In
June 2016, he founded and became the director of One Belt One
Road Eurasia Centre (HK) Limited.

Mr. Yu was awarded the Chevalier de I'ordre national du Merite
by the Government of France in June 1996 and was awarded the
medal of honour by the Government of the HKSAR in 1999. He
was appointed as a member of the eleventh and twelfth National
People’s Congress HKSAR Representative Elective Committee and
was appointed as a committee member of the first Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Huangpu, Guangzhou in
August 2015. He was also appointed as a member by the Consumer
Council for the period between 2003 and 2008. In December 2008,
he received the honorary decoration award from the Chamber of
Beauty Culture & Cosmetics of All-China Federation of Industry &
Commerce. He is currently a member of the Customer Consultative
Group of CLP Power Hong Kong Limited, and an elected member
of the retailer category of Quality Tourism Services Association
Governing Council (QTSA) and the chairman of the Better Business
Environment Committee of QTSA. He has been the chairman of
the seventh Professional’s Committee of Kowloon Federation of
Association since June 2015. He has been an honorary life president
of the Cosmetic & Perfumery Association of Hong Kong Ltd. since
1996.

Mr. Yu obtained a degree of master of science from the National
University of Ireland in April 2003. He was admitted as honorary
senior fellow by the Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong
Business Sector (PVCBS) in November 2005, and was the president of
the 6th session of the executive committee of PVCBS.
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Mr. ZHAO Zhipeng (# & §), aged 36, is our independent non-
executive Director, the chairperson of our Remuneration Committee,
and a member of our Audit Committee. Mr. Zhao is responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgment to our Board, Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Zhao has more than six years of experience in the legal industry.
Prior to joining our Group, he worked as a trainee solicitor at Patrick
Mak & Tse from July 2011 to December 2013 and as an assistant
solicitor in the same firm from December 2013 to March 2016.
He became a partner of the said firm since 2016. He has been an
independent non-executive director of Kin Pang Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1722), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, since November 2017.

Mr. Zhao obtained a degree of bachelor of laws from The East
China University of Political Science and Law in July 2006, a degree
of master of laws from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
December 2007, a juris doctor degree from the City University of
Hong Kong in October 2009 and a postgraduate certificate in laws
from the City University of Hong Kong in July 2011. He was admitted
to practice law as a solicitor in Hong Kong in December 2013.

Ms. YEE Wai Fong Wendy (5R¥E35), aged 54, is our independent
non-executive Director and a member of our Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee. She is responsible for supervising and
providing independent judgment to our Board, Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee.

Ms. Yee has more than 26 years of experience in finance and
accounting areas in the Asia Pacific. Prior to joining our Group,
she was a senior auditor of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from July
1988 to April 1993. From July 1993 to November 2006 she has
served a number of positions in the Motorola Asia Pacific Limited,
a multinational telecommunications company listed in the United
States, with her last position as a controller for Hong Kong, the
Philippines and the business development team of its networks and
enterprise business. From December 2006 to April 2010 she has
served a number of position in Ecolab Limited, a subsidiary of Ecolab
Inc., a company listed in the United States, with her last position as
Asia control director. From May 2010 to July 2012 she served as a
vice president of finance in Active-Semi International, Inc. From July
2012 to June 2013, she worked as a senior director of finance and
accounting, Asia, at Mikli Asia Limited. She then served as a director
of finance from April 2014 to June 2017 at Targus Asia Pacific
Limited.

Ms. Yee obtained a degree of bachelor of social sciences from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1988 and a degree of bachelor
of science from the University of London in August 2002. She further
obtained a degree of master of business administration from the
University of Dubuque in December 2002. She has been admitted
as a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales in February 2006, and as an associate of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since April 1992.
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Dr. Liu Ngai Wing (B £ %), aged 69, is our independent non-
executive Director. He is responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgement to our Board. Dr. Liu was awarded a
Master Degree of Business Administration degree from The Open
University of Hong Kong in December 1999. He then obtained a
Master of Science degree in Hotel and Tourism Management in The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2001. He further
obtained a Master of Science degree in Global Business from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 2002, a PhD degree
from the Hotel and Tourism Management School of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in October 2008, a Master of Arts degree in
China Studies from Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
in November 2011, a Master of Arts degree in Asia and International
Studies from The City University of Hong Kong in February 2013,
a Doctor of Business Administration degree from Curtin University
of Technology in January 2013, a Master of Arts degree in Practical
Philosophy from Lingnan University in November 2015, Master of
Arts degree in Chinese Studies from Chu Hai College of Higher
Education in October 2017, and a Bachelor of Arts degree in Chinese
Humanities from The Open University of Hong Kong in August 2018.

Dr. Liu is an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Company
Secretaries, an associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow of The Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants.
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Dr. Liu worked as a chief executive officer and a chairman at Yoshiya
International Corporation, Limited (currently known as Capital Estate
Limited, Stock Code 193), a company of which shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from October 1996 to April
2002. He was an executive director of eSun Holdings Limited (Stock
Code 571), a company of which shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, from November 1998 to May 2008. He was
an independent non-executive director and the chairman of the audit
committee of Hang Fung Gold Technology Limited (currently known
as 3D-GOLD Jewellery Holdings Limited (“3D-GOLD")), a company
of which shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
but were subsequently delisted on 9 July 2012, from March 2000 to
December 2008. Shares in 3D-GOLD were suspended from trading
since 29 September 2008 and it was announced on the same day
that Dr. Lam Sai Wing (“Dr. Lam”), the then chairman of 3D-GOLD
had passed away and that technical breaches of certain loan facilities
may arise as a result of Dr. Lam ceasing to be chairman of 3D-GOLD.
On 14 October 2008 it was announced that certain wholesale trade
receivables of 3D-GOLD might not be recoverable, and a winding-
up petition for 3D-GOLD was filed by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited on 17 October 2008. The winding-up
petition was subsequently adjourned to 13 July 2011 based on the
available announcement of 3D-GOLD. The shares of 3D-GOLD were
delisted with effect from 9 July 2011 by the Stock Exchange. Since
Dr. Liu’s resignation from the board of directors of 3D-GOLD on 5
December 2008, he has been unaware of any further developments
in the affairs of 3D-GOLD.

Dr. Liu also acted as the executive director and chief executive
officer of Singapore Hong Kong Properties Investment Limited
(currently known as China Minsheng Financial Holding Corporation
Limited, Stock Code 245), a company of which shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from September 2000 to
December 2001. He was an independent non-executive director of
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited (currently known as Maxnerva
Technology Services Limited, Stock Code 1037), a company of
which shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
from September 2004 to December 2015. He was an independent
non-executive director of Dorsett Hospitality International Limited
("Dorsett Hospitality "), a company of which shares were listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange but which were delisted on 16
October 2015, from September 2010 to October 2015. After Dorsett
Hospitality was delisted, Dr. Liu continued to be its director until
March 2016. He currently holds the position as an executive director
at Miranda Company Limited.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. XIE Xing (# £), aged 39, is our chief financial officer and
company secretary. He is responsible for overseeing our financial
reporting, financial planning, treasury, financial control and company
secretarial matters.

Mr. Xie has more than 12 years of experience in the accounting and
financial field. Prior to joining our Group, he worked at KPMG from
July 2006 to February 2008, with his last position as an accountant.
Subsequently, he worked as a financial and planning manager at
Garona (HK) Limited from February 2008 to November 2008, as an
accountant at Mapletree Logistics Management (HK) Limited from
May 2009 to June 2010, as a business and finance manager at
Vantage Sourced Limited from June 2010 to December 2012 and as
a senior financial analyst at 3 Wells Watch Industries Limited from
December 2011 to January 2014. In July 2014, he co-founded and
became a director of Makeup Gallery Limited. From July 2015 to
April 2017, he worked as a financial analyst at Metito China Holdings
Limited. He rejoined 3 Wells Watch Industries Limited as the chief
financial officer in May 2017.

He obtained a degree of bachelor of science with honour in applied
physics from the Hong Kong Baptist University in December 2003,
a degree of master of philosophy in physics from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in November 2005 and a
degree of master of economics from The University of Hong Kong in
November 2019. He has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since May 2011.

Mr. LAU Yue Man (2] & X), aged 50, is our general manager
and a director of Shenzhen 3 Wells Watch Company Limited. He is
responsible for overseeing daily operation of our PRC production
plant, and resolving production and products issues.

Mr. Lau has over 24 years of experience in management. Prior to
joining our Group, he worked as a general manager in Golden Island
Watch Industrial (Shenzhen) Limited* (& &k % CGEI) BRE A 7))
from June 1994 to December 1996, as a general manager in Han Lin
Metal Products Manufactory Limited* (2% & BE KB E R A 7))
from January 1997 to April 2002, and as a technical director in Sutec
(H.K.) Limited from August 2002 to January 2014.
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Ms. AU Hung Wai Didy (B 4L £), aged 53, is our vice general
manager. She is responsible for overseeing research and development
and procurement department.

Ms. Au has more than 31 years of experience in the watch industry.
She joined 3 Wells Watch Industries Limited in October 1986 as a
quality controller and was promoted to purchase clerk in September
1988. She left 3 Wells Watch Industries Limited in June 1996 and
rejoined 3 Wells Watch Industries Limited in January 1997 as a
purchase and research and development manager, and she is
currently the vice general manager (China operation).

She is the sister of Mrs. Cheuk, sister-in-law of Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong
Clement and aunt of Ms. Cheuk Heide Qil-gei.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in design and development, manufacturing
and distribution of watch products on ODM basis for watch
manufacturers, brand owners and watch importers across the globe.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
the financial positions of the Company and of the Group as at that
date are set out in the audited consolidated financial statements on
pages 72 to 188 of this annual report.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements, is set out on page 188 in the annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue attributable
to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
46.3% (2018: 28.6%) of the Group’s total revenue and the revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 75.6% (2018: 58.6%) of the Group's total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the costs incurred in
respect of the Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately
7.0% (2018: 9.6%) of the Group's total cost of services and materials
sold incurred and the costs incurred in respect of the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 32.9% (2018: 39.5%)
of the Group’s total cost of services and materials sold incurred.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates, or any
shareholder of the Company (who to the knowledge of the Directors
own 5% or more of the issued shares of the Company) had any
beneficial interest in any the Group’s major customers or suppliers
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year ended 31
December 2019.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 75 and in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had retained profit amounted
to approximately HK$9.69 million available for distribution to the
shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

None of the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company is incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has not
entered into any connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions that are not exempted under the GEM Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements. To the best knowledge
of the Directors, none of these related party transactions constitutes
connected transactions that need to be disclosed under the GEM
Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year ended 31 December
2019 and analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators and prospectus of the Group’s business are
provided in sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on page 5 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 19 of the
annual report and the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to promoting sustainability both in
term of business development and impact to the environment.
The Group has complied with all the relevant environmental
protection law and regulations that have significant impact on
the Group's business where the Group is operating. The Group
will review its environmental practices from time to time and will
consider implementing further measures and practices to enhance
sustainability whenever appropriate and possible.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance
for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 53 to 64
of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND

REGULATIONS

The Group seeks to uphold high standard of integrity in all aspects of
business and is committed to ensure that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulatory requirements and has
formulated and adopted various internal control measures, approval
procedures and training within all business units at all levels of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2019, there has been
no violation or breach of relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Company.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group emphasises on maintaining good relationship with its
stakeholders and considers it a key element to sustainable business
growth.

Employees

The Group has always been people-oriented and has attached great
importance to human resource management. We attract excellent
talents through fair recruitment policy and provide employees with
training opportunities, good career development prospect and
growth opportunities. From time to time, we offer our employees
remuneration packages that are comprehensive and attractive. Some
employees are granted options under the Share Option Scheme
in recognition of their contribution. We also value our employee’s
physical and mental development. Diverse events and activities are
organised for the employees for fostering work-life balance and
personal growth.

Customers

The Group is committed to offering our customers products and
services to the best of our ability. We highly value comments and
suggestions of our customers and have always maintained effective
communications with the customers. We will continue to reach
out for current and prospective customers through, inter-alia, on-
site visits and major customers satisfaction surveys. We believe that
customers’ feedback would help us to identify areas of improvement
and advance us to achieve excellence.

Suppliers

Maintaining good relationship with suppliers is essential to the
Group’s business performance and growth because suppliers can
have direct influence over the quality of the products and services
and customer satisfaction. We adopt a “Management Measures for
Suppliers” in respect of the supplier selection procedures, quality
testing methods and comprehensive appraisal and evaluation
system on potential and existing suppliers and their products and
performance. We are committed to establishing a close and long-
term cooperation relationship with business partners.
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Our Group’s financial condition, results of operations and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by our Group.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to our Group or which may not be
material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

We operate in a highly competitive environment and we
cannot assure you that we will be able to grow or sustain our
competitiveness

Watch manufacturing in the PRC is highly competitive and
fragmented with over 1,000 players. The pricing of and demand for
our watches are significantly affected by the intensity of competition
we face. Our competitors may have substantially greater financial and
technological resources, design and manufacturing capacities and
stronger customer and supplier relationships than we do. As a result,
we cannot assure you that we may be able to compete effectively
with these competitors and the competitive pressures could adversely
affect our business and financial condition and results of operations.

Changes in existing laws and regulations and the imposition of
new laws, regulations, restrictions and any other entry barriers
in relation to our industry may increase our costs

We are subject to compliance with various laws and regulations
relating to the production and sales of watches in the jurisdictions in
which we operate. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations
may result in imposition of conditions on or the suspension of sale or
seizure of our products, or significant penalties or claims. In the event
that the countries in which we operate increase the stringency of
such laws and regulations, our operating costs may increase and we
may not be able to pass these additional costs onto our customers.
Further, in the event that any jurisdiction in which we operate or plan
to operate impose any new laws, regulations, restrictions or other
barriers to entry, our ability to expand may be limited and our growth
and development may be adversely affected.
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We operate our production facility in the PRC. A substantial part
of parts and components are sourced from various suppliers who
are mostly Hong Kong companies with production facilities in the
PRC. Accordingly, the business, results of operations and financial
condition as well as prospects of our Group are subject, to a
significant degree, to the economic, political and legal developments
in the PRC.

Political and economic policies of the PRC Government may
affect our business and results of operations and may result in
our inability to sustain our growth and expansion strategies
The PRC economy has largely been a centrally planned economy,
which differs from other developed economies of the world in many
respects, including:

° the degree of the PRC Government’s involvement;

e the growth rate and degree of development;

e the uniformity in implementation and enforcement of laws;
° the content of and control over capital investment;

e the control of foreign exchange; and

e the allocation of resources.

The PRC economy has been transitioning from a centrally planned
economy to a more market-oriented economy. For approximately
three decades, the PRC Government has implemented economic
reform measures to utilise market forces in the development of the
PRC economy. The PRC economy has grown significantly in recent
decades, though we cannot assure you that this growth will continue
or continue at the same pace.

In addition, the PRC Government continues to play a significant role
in regulating industries and the economy through policy measured.
As such, we cannot assure you that we will not be adversely affected
by the measures that are under continuous adjustments. Also, the
PRC Government has implemented various measures to guide the
allocation of resources. Some of these measures may benefit the
overall economy of the PRC, but may also have a negative impact on
the watch industry or on us. For example, our financial results may be
adversely affected by government control over capital investments or
changes in tax regulations that are applicable to us.

Details of financial risks are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEUK Sin Cheong Clement (Chairman)
Ms. AU Corona Ching Mei M.H.

Ms. CHEUK Heide QOil-gei

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. YU Sau Ning Homer M.H.

Mr. ZHAO Zhipeng

Ms. YEE Wai Fong Wendy

Dr. LIU Ngai Wing (appointed on 1 April 2019)

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
and shall be eligible for re-election. Every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, Mr. Cheuk Sin
Cheong Clement, Mr. Yu Sau Ning Homer M.H. and Ms. Yee
Wai Fong Wendy will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
There is no change in the information of Directors, which is required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 32 to 39 of the annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SIGNIFICANT
CONTRACTS

Save as the related party transactions and connected transactions
disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, no
Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended
31 December 2019.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance that is significant to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a person who at any time was a Director or his connected
entity had, directly or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2019.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance
has been made between the Company or any one of its subsidiaries
and a controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2019 or as at the date of this annual report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to Article 164 of the Articles, the Directors, secretary and
other officers and every auditor for the time being of the Company
and the liquidator or trustees (if any) for the time being acting in
relation to any of the affairs of the Company and everyone of them,
and everyone of their heirs, executors and administrators, shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them, their or any of
their heirs, executors or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices or trusts; and none of them shall be answerable for the acts,
receipts, neglects or defaults of the other or others of them or for
joining in any receipts for the sake of conformity, or for any bankers
or other persons with whom any moneys or effects belonging to the
Company shall or may be lodged or deposited for safe custody, or for
insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any moneys of
or belonging to the Company shall be placed out on or invested, or
for any other loss, misfortune or damage which may happen in the
execution of their respective offices or trusts, or in relation thereto;
provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect
of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said persons.
Such provision was in force during the year ended 31 December
2019. In addition, the Company has also maintained Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance during the year ended 31 December 2019,
which provides appropriate cover for the directors and officers of the
Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2019, the Company did not enter into or have
any management and administration contracts in respect of the
whole or any principal business of the Company.

DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and
chief executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures or any associated corporation” below, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2019 were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, or the Company’s subsidiary or holding company
or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding company a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of
the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company:

EERBEETHRAERR®D -
RGO RESHNERXBHE
A= E

MN2019F 12 A31H BEERARAES
TTRRABRA R A s T EE (T
RESERHEEMNEXVER) 2K - 188
B MERPESBREE S LAE &M
BEXVHETRESDEME RN T R
FzEm RAR (BEREESRBEK
PIEBIEXEEWEERR AR 2R
PARE)  WRBRARFIRIEESMAE
EHIE 3528 AEE 2 B 2R RA
B IR GEM ETARBIZE 546 255 5.68
EBMEARNNE M2 s MR B
T

RARBIRG VLT A -
Long position

"R

Percentage of

Number of total number

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest ordinary shares of shares

MR EE

EEng B, ERHE EBREE Bok

Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong, Clement Interest in controlled corporation 750,000,000 75%

("Mr. Cheuk”) (Note)

sEBRE(EERE]D (Hit) AR HEE S 750,000,000 fi% 75%

Ms. Au Corona Ching Mei M.H. Interest in controlled corporation 750,000,000 75%
("Mrs. Cheuk") (Note)

BiEFEz+ MH. ([EAK]) REHEE R 750,000,000 fi% 75%

(K1)

Note: 750,000,000 shares of the Company are registered in the name of Million
Easy Enterprises Ltd. (“Million Easy”), the entire issued share capital of
which are legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Cheuk and Mrs. Cheuk in
equal shares. Under the SFO, both Mr. Cheuk and Mrs. Cheuk are deemed
to be interest in all the shares of the Company held by Million Easy.
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Long position in the ordinary shares of associated corporation:

R EE BRI E

Long position

"R

Name of Capacity/ Number of  Percentage of

associated Nature of ordinary total number

Name of Director corporation Interest shares of shares

56/ RGO EE

E=pE HEEEER ERME ZEREE Bk

Mr. Cheuk Million Easy Beneficial Interest 1 50%
sEE B8H B

Mrs. Cheuk Million Easy Beneficial Interest 1 50%
BEARK BH Ean

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to
securities transactions by directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
As at 31 December 2019, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons/entities have an
interest or a short position in the shares or the underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register of the Company required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in shares of the Company:

FERRRART 2R G K AEE
BRONERR HKXR

M20194 128318 - @%%&ﬁ
BITBRABSN  THAL EER ﬂ
Hxﬁjﬁﬁﬁaﬁxfﬁq:‘%’Eﬁﬁ?}?mﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬂm
B2 336 1§78 R0 8 AN A A B) 2 Re i P Y 4
AR

RARBIRGO TR -
Long position

"R

Percentage of

Number of total number

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest ordinary shares of shares
HRD B

=x 5% EatE EEREE Bok
Million Easy Beneficial Interest 750,000,000 75%
B5H EnEn 750,000,000 fi% 75%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors are
not aware of any other persons/entities (other than a Director and
chief executive of the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken
to have any interests or short position in any shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased or sold
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2019. The Company had not redeemed any of its listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2019.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the management shareholders or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of its respective associates has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules, or has any other conflict of interests with the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Annual Report 2019 43

Br EXPTHEEEESN 722019412 A31H -
BEEMN  WEIMNEMAL BB (E
ERARRERSITHRABBRIN RARARME
AR SRABRE R D P AR WR B E
HERBEEBE S L EIEP % 336 15ARL 8%
RGBT Z R MR ERS AR -

BE BEHHEARQR LHHE
%

HE2019F12A31BILEEE - AARAK
HEEMMEARBEES K HETMAR
A EMES  ARARJMEERLDETA EH

2 5
Eis) ©

mERARER
HE2019F12A31HILEFE  ARFE
F EEEBRRENTIERRNIMAHRFS
BBMEAMELETRAEEER (THE
B ) B E ok AT RE R R T 2 TR ¥ 75
(FERGEM EMAR) sk EAREEELEE
AT E AR @R -

51



52

Report of Directors

EEEWE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 20 to 31 of this annual
report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company maintained the amount of public float as required under
the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2019 and
up to the date of this annual report.

DIVIDEND
The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

DONATION

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group made
charitable and other donations amounting to approximately HK$1.87
million (2018: HK$0.51 million).

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation in writing of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited. The Company has not changed auditor during any
of past three years. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re- appoint HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited as auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Mr. CHEUK Sin Cheong Clement
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 April 2020
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12 1

ABOUT THE REPORT

With the growing consciousness and importance of sustainability, the
Group takes this opportunity to scrutinise management practices that
are material to stakeholders, for example, environmental protection,
product quality and employee care.

This report (the "ESG Report”) is prepared in with reference to the
ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing
Rules. The report aims to improve stakeholders’ understanding and
to introduce ongoing sustainability initiatives directed towards the
fulfilment of our obligations to society and the environment in which
we operate.

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report includes the business
operations of the Group in both Hong Kong and the PRC during
the reporting period for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the
“Reporting Period”) relating to the overall performance, risks,
strategies, measures and commitments of four aspects: quality of
working environment, environmental protection, operating practices
and community participation.

Through this ESG Report, the Group makes public and detailed
disclosure and elaboration of environmental, social and governance
("ESG") and other non-financial matters of the Company. The Group
intended the ESG Report disclosures to provide the opportunity
to review our ESG performance and governance achievements, as
well as serve as a platform for the public to understand our social
responsibility values and non-financial business achievements.
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OVERALL APPROACHES AND POLICIES

The Group has been persist in creating economic benefits,
promoting business development and performing its corporate social
responsibility to strike a balance between all parties, while advocating
corporate integrity in its pursuit of sustainable development. For our
sustainable development, we are committed to:

e ensuring the compliance with laws, regulations and standards
applicable to our operations in an ethical and transparent
manner;

e maintaining a long-term and sustainable relationship by
listening to the voice of the community to understand the social
needs;

e establishing and maintaining open and transparent
communications with local communities and the public
on matters regarding safety, environment and community
relationship; and

e protecting the integrity, health, and benefits of stakeholders
on issues such as cooperation and respect for employees,
communities and environment, for the sake of being recognised
as a company with sustainable development.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We value our stakeholders and their feedback in regards to our
businesses and ESG aspects. With the goal to strengthen the
sustainability approach and performance of the Group, we put effort
in maintaining a close communication with our key stakeholders,
including government and regulatory authorities, shareholders,
employees, customers, suppliers, and the general public.
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The Company, being one of the major watch manufacturers in Hong
Kong, is committed to promoting sustainability both in terms of
business development and impact to the environment. We embrace
principles and practices that help minimise our carbon footprint,
energy consumption and climate change impacts.

The factory of the Group in Shenzhen is regulated by “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Solid Waste
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, “Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the People’s Republic
of China” and “Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and other environmental protection
regulatory standards issued by the central and local governments.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance of the PRC environmental protection laws
and regulations.

Air pollutants and greenhouse gas emissions

During the Reporting Period, air pollutants emitted from the Group
such as sulphur oxides (“SOx"), nitrogen oxides (“NOx") and
particulate matter (“PM") were mainly generated from vehicles used
for transportation.

To minimise the adverse impact on the environment, all vehicles and
machineries of the Group are driven by unleaded petrol and electricity
respectively. The total combustion of 22,662 liters of unleaded
petrol emits air pollutants including SO,, NO, and particulate matter,
amounting to 333g, 30,7679 and 2,265g respectively.

The main source of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions is derived
from direct emission from the mobile combustion sources (“Scope
1), indirect emission from acquired electricity emissions (“Scope 2")
and other indirect emissions (“Scope 3").
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The table below shows the total greenhouse gas emissions by
category in 2019 and 2018, respectively:

TRITIZEERE 9 H2019F £ 20184F

RERBIHNAE

Intensity (per m? of

Type of emission Unit Emission the factory area)
BE(BFHK
B E Bl B HHE IHREE)
2019 2018 2019 2018

2019 20184 20195 20184F
Scope 1 Tonnes CO,e 61 55 0.05 0.04
#[E1 L7 P =
Scope 2 Tonnes CO,e 328 335 0.26 0.26
&= 2 WE — LIRS &
Scope 3 Tonnes CO,e 44 44 0.04 0.04
#[E3 W — L iRE &
Total (Scope 1, 2 & 3) Tonnes COze 433 434 0.35 0.34
wEt (BE - 2R%3) WAL EE

Hazardous and non-hazardous waste

Waste production was mainly attributed to the discarded packaging
materials and domestic wastes of office, therefore hazardous wastes
produced are immaterial. Our non-hazardous wastes are disposed
off at the refuse collection points set in the premise of the industrial
park. The Group had conducted environment impact assessment
on the production facilities and result indicated that emissions of air
pollutants, greenhouse gases, water, sewage and non-hazardous
wastes comply with the PRC regulations.

The following measures have been implemented by the Group:
—  duplex printings and reuse single-sided printed papers,

— using durable tableware instead of non-recyclable or disposable
ones in staff canteen in the PRC; and

—  providing reusable face mask and protective cap to staff.
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RiE

The Group are proactively seeking opportunities to minimise the
impact of business activities on the environment. In order to reduce
the use of resources, the Group actively implemented measures in
energy conservation and pollution reduction.

Electricity

The major energy consumption of the Group in daily operations is
electricity consumed in the operations. The Group has formulated
rules and regulations to achieve the goal of electricity saving and
efficient consumption. The relevant specific measures are as follows:

e turns off all unnecessary lightings, air conditioner and other
office equipment in office areas, conference rooms when not in
use;

e maintains indoor temperature at an optimal, comfortable level
to conserve energy; and

e enhances the maintenance and overhaul of equipment,
maintain the best condition of all electronic equipment for
effective use of electricity.

Water

The main business of the Group is manufacturing and distribution
of watch products on ODM watches, which do not rely heavily on
energy consumption nor water resources and do not have any issue
in sourcing water. Water usage in both Hong Kong and the PRC
operations are mainly due to domestic consumption. In the process
of quality checking (watches’ water resistance test), only limited
amount of water is used while the assembly lines do not produce any
industrial sewage. To reduce consumptions, water is reused whatever

possible.
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Intensity
(Per HK$1 m
Resources utilisation Unit Usage revenue)
nE
BERAA B ERE (BEBETWE)
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019 20184 20194 20184
Electricity
B
Office kWh 53,093 60,942 268 334
NS T B
Factory kWh 364,005 389,591 1,838 2,135
IR TR
Water Tonne 4,284 2,536 22 14
7K U7
Paper Kg 1,609 712 8 4
i T
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Driven by the belief in maintaining sustainability, the Group strives
to ensure efficient use of natural resources. including energy,
materials and auxiliary materials, with the effective implementation
of environmental protection measures, the consumption intensity of
electricity in office and factory have dropped by about 20% and 14%
respectively.

Packaging materials

The Group’s major product is watch, where most of the packaging
materials are used for presentation of products. During the Reporting
Period, the packaging materials consumed of the Group and its
intensity were as follows:

REEBRBOUHELREES  EHIERS
MAERBRER  BIEEER  ME REBIM
BeBERREBEENELERE  BAE

ITHAEEZE DRI TR T 20% K& 14% °

BEHH

AEBNEITEEMSTER KEOINEER
MHEOBEERERR - BEHR - XEEH
FORFER BEM B REBEE TR

Intensity (Per

HK$1 million

Type Unit Usage turnover)

RE

(EEEET

Ba B FHE )

Gift box kg 6,678 33.7
Bhe T

Plastic packing materials kg 806 41
SR B R Fr

The environmental and natural resources RERBARER

To lower the environmental impact and use of natural resources, the
management of the Group would evaluate the policies from time to
time to create sustainable environmental value such as energy-saving
initiative. The Group pursues the best practice for environmental
protection. In addition to complying with related environmental
laws and regulations and international standards for proper natural
environment preservation, the Group has integrated the concept of
environmental protection and natural resource conservation into its
internal management and daily operations in order to achieve the aim
of environmental sustainability.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Company’s success relies on the continued support of its
dedicated workforce, the most valuable asset for sustaining business.
The Group respects and cares for our employees by creating
a delightful and safe workplace, as well as providing training
opportunities.

Employment

All labour related issues in terms of compensation, working hours,
rest periods, recruitment and promotion, dismissal procedures, equal
opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination are in compliance with
the Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong and the Labour Law of the
PRC.

The Company is committed to creating a working atmosphere free
of discrimination and harassment. Discriminatory acts or motives in
all phases of employment on the grounds of nationality, physical
ability, gender, age and any other legally protected status are strictly
prohibited in the Group. Employees are encouraged to report any
unlawful discrimination or any form of harassment. The Group
investigates expeditiously and takes appropriate corrective actions
once we have confirmed the allegations.

In addition to performance bonus and statutory benefits, the Group
offers to the employees other benefits including healthcare benefits,
maternity and paternity leave, marriage leave, and birthday leaves,
etc. On top of the compulsory social insurance under the Labour Law
in the PRC, employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to annual
health examinations.

The Group strives to maintain employee turnover rate at an
acceptable level so as to facilitate accumulation of professional skills
and experience. The turnover of staff is mainly due to the changes in
the number of part-time workers in workshop, which were hired for
ad-hoc production projects.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not aware of any material
non-compliance relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity and discriminations.
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Percentage of Staff turnover

No. of staff total staff rate
HETHAE BT
ETHE Aot mE=E
Total number of employees EEAH 166 100 472
Gender 15
Male B 63 37.9 50.8
Female M 103 62.1 451
Age Group FERA
18-30 18 = 3073% 39 23.6 96.5
31-40 31 2405 63 37.9 54.1
41-50 41250738 56 33.5 1.9
51 or above 515 A 8 5.0 11.6
Geographical region PR [ 15
The PRC H 148 89.2 49.7
Hong Kong B 18 10.8 263
Employee categories S5
Senior management SRERRE 6 3.7 14.1
Middle management PREREE 13 8.1 14.1
General staff TRET 147 88.2 51.6
Service period HRE R
Less than 5 years DRAF 75 453 81.2
5 to 10 years A=+ 39 23.6 15.6
Over 10 years +EB 52 31.1 4.0
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Health and Safety

The Group proactively works to reduce injury risks and occupational
diseases by establishing related management systems and organising
safety training for its workforce.

The Group aims to ensure a safe occupational environment and
manage health and safety risk at our production facilities. Warning
signs are posted at prominent positions, with potential health
impacts, handling procedures and preventive measures. Personal
protective equipment such as safety gloves, masks and safety goggles
are provided and required at work. Evaluation of safety practices is
conducted on a regular basis. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not aware of any non-compliance of all the relevant laws and
regulations related to providing safe environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards, including the Hong Kong's
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, as well as Production
Safety Law (% & 4 & /&) and Provisions on the Supervision and
Administration of Occupational Health at Work Sites{ T {35 Ffr B 3
BB BEIEMRE)of the PRC.
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Occupational health and safety statistics 2019
BERBERZZ2HE 2019
Number of lost days due to work injury Nil
ETEEEANTIIERE i
Number of work-related fatalities Nil
TYESRT AEL e
Number of work injuries Nil
TEAH .
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Training and Development

The Group aims at providing suitable and valuable opportunities
for our talented employees. The Group assesses each employee at
the end of every year, on working performance, attitudes and other
key performance indicators. The appraisal results are used as one of
the considerations in the promotion, job title and renumerations.
Through this reviewing process, they can make corresponding
improvements and discuss their training needs with direct supervisors
so that their potentials are realised to the fullest.

The Group also subsidises employees for taking external training
courses which facilitates their personal and the Group's development.
The Company is committed to providing training opportunities for all
levels of employees.

The Group and management are dedicated to the continuous
development of our employees’ capabilities and we value the
personal and professional growth of our employees. By fostering a
culture of continuous learning, we seek to cultivate and retain our
best talents and maintain our competitive positioning in the market.

AR R
AEEEERBLEREHEGENERH
- AKEREBFRFEZTEENTIER
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Staff category Major training content
BT HEH FEHIRE

Factory Worker

IHmIA TEMBEL2RER
General Staff

E@RET ERERA IR M) A8

Middle Management

Directors and Senior Executives

EELERERAR

Labour standard

Labour rights are protected in accordance with local laws and
regulations. Hiring child labour and forced labour are strictly
prohibited in the Group. Identification documents of job applicants
are checked before the interview and signing of the employment
contract. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance relating to employment and labour practices that
had a significant impact on the Group.

Craftsmanship and occupational safety and health
Specific training provided based on their roles

Specific training provided based on their roles
HEEEAE ERE R R ey B g3l
Corporate governance practices and legal and regulatory updates

EEERBRIOEREREN

5 T

B THRIE 05 K RERORE - A%E
BERFEIRBAST - EHAREER
e OR  BIERE REE NS A -
45 8070+ 795 3 R SR (o K S
EREAYBORE RS THRRAER -
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OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

The supply chains mainly cover two general categories: (i) office
supply chains; and (i) production supply chains. At the office level,
supply chains cover procurement for headquarter office and are
mainly stationeries (such as stationery, toner and paper). At the
production level, supply chains cover procurement of parts of
assembled parts of watch and packing materials.

By having stringent supply chain management, we ensure our
product quality and maintain our competitiveness in the market.
The Group also strive to ensures that suppliers will provide sufficient
after-sales services, that being one of the perquisites of the business
relationship. Additionally, the Group request the suppliers to comply
with relevant legislation when supplying goods and services to the
Group. The Group conducts annual evaluations of its suppliers to
ensure that quality is maintained, and that prices paid for goods and
services provided remain competitive. Any suppliers that were not
up to standard would be subject to re-evaluation before making any
further business dealings.

To enhance the sustainability of the supply chains and minimise
carbon footprints, the Group tried to source the raw materials locally.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has 989 suppliers with a
majority of the suppliers of the Group located in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

Product responsibility

The Group is committed to providing high-quality stainless-steel
watches with an extensive range of designs and specifications (sport,
fashion, classic, diamond, etc). The Group obtained the ISO 9001
certification back in 1996. Production site of the Group is certified
with ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System in 2017. To ensure
on-going compliance with the requirements listed in ISO 9001,
evaluations on the performance are carried out at least once a year.

To ensure the provision of quality products to customers, a series
of stringent internal quality control procedures are performed
throughout the watch manufacturing process. Quality check on the
watch parts and components before assembly, final watch products
during productions and packaged final watch products before
shipments on sampling basis are performed. During the Reporting
Period, no cases of product recalls nor major complaints received
against our products due to health and safety issues.
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Privacy protection

The Group collects information from suppliers and customers for
different purposes and takes appropriate procedures to ensure
that the information collected are solely for lawful and relevant
purposes. The Group sets out data privacy requirements in the
Company’s policies, under which customer and suppliers data would
be used exclusively for matters relating to the Group’s operation
only. The Group strives to ensuring all collected data kept is free of
unauthorised or accidental access, processing, erasure or other use.

During the Reporting Period, the Group were not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group concerning health and safety,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products.

Anti-corruption

The Group follows the Company Law of the PRC, the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC and the Hong Kong Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance and other regulations, and distribute employee
handbooks and notices issued irregularly (such as on the eve of the
festival) to each employee to clearly explain the policy regarding
the acceptance of benefits between them and suppliers/partners.
Any unethical behaviours are strictly prohibited in the Group. A
whistleblowing policy is in place that mandates employees to report
any suspicious cases of unethical behaviours to the human resources
or the management orally or in writing, the Group would report the
cases to the authorities if the case found to be sufficiently supported
with evidences.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with laws and regulations having a significant impact on
the Group, on bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, nor of
any legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group
or its employees.

COMMUNITY

Community investment

The Group has always strived to embed social responsibility in its
corporate culture by upholding the virtual of “taking from society
and giving back to society”. During the Reporting Period, the Group
has donated over HK$1.8 million to various charity organisations. The
beneficiary institutions included City University of Hong Kong, the
Hospital Authority and Po Leung Kuk, etc. The Group will continue
to support a wide range of area, including education, medicals,
women’s rights by supporting other similar organisations.
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BE 30 EH A R A F
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HANVEY GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hanvey
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 188,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B BA®RE

Key Audit Matter
BRELER

Trade receivables

ESENNE

Refer to note 3 and note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had
gross trade receivables of approximately
HK45,068,000 (2018: HK$43,868,000) and
provision for impairment of approximately
HK401,000 (2018: HK$394,000).

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group
to the customers ranged between 30 to 90 days
(2018: 30 to 90 days). Management performed
periodic assessment on the recoverability of the
trade receivables and the sufficiency of provision
for impairment based on information including
credit profile of different customers, ageing
of the trade receivables, historical settlement
records, subsequent settlement status, expected
timing and amount of realisation of outstanding
balances, and on-going trading relationships
with the relevant customers. Management
also considered forward-looking information
that may impact the customers’ ability to repay
the outstanding balances in order to estimate
the expected credit losses for the impairment
assessment.

We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables under the
expected credit losses model involved the use
of significant management judgements and
estimates.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERNERTNNEERRELER

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:

Understanding and evaluating the key controls that the Group
has implemented to manage and monitor its credit risk, and
validating the control effectiveness on a sample basis;

Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2019 to the underlying financial
records and post year-end settlements to bank receipts;

Inquiring of management for the status of each of the material
trade receivables past due as at year end and corroborating
explanations from management with supporting evidence,
such as performing public search of credit profile of selected
customers, understanding on-going business relationship with
the customers based on trade records, checking historical and
subsequent settlement records of and other correspondence
with the customers; and

Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit loss
provisioning methodology, examining the key data inputs on
a sample basis to assess their accuracy and completeness, and
challenging the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine the expected
credit losses.

We found that the management judgment and estimates used to
assess the recoverability of the trade receivables and determine the
impairment provision to be supportable by available evidence.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B BAT®RE

Key Audit Matter
HAREXREBER

Revenue recognition

W 25 AT

Refer to Note 3, 5 and Note 6 the consolidated
financial statements.

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies
a performance obligation by transferring
the control of promised goods or services to
a customer in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for that goods or services.

We focused on this area due to the huge volume

of revenue transactions generated in many
different locations.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERERPNNEERREREE

Our procedures in relation to assess the recognition of revenue
from manufacturing and trading business of watches included:

Understanding, evaluating and testing management’s controls
in respect of the Group’s sales transactions from contract
approval, recording of sales based on contract terms, through
reconciliations with cash receipts and customer’s records;

Testing of revenue recorded covering different locations and
customers, using sampling techniques, by examining the
relevant customer orders, goods delivery notes and customer’s
receipt note. In addition, we sent confirmations to certain
customers to confirm their balance with the Group; and

Testing the recognition of material sales transactions close to
the end of the reporting period to assess whether those sales
transactions were recorded in appropriate accounting period in
accordance with the Group's revenue recognition policy.

We found the amount and timing of the revenue recorded were
supported by the available evidence.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B BA®RE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B BAT®RE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B BA®RE

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B BAT®RE

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Wong Sze Wai, Basilia.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Sze Wai, Basilia
Practising Certificate Number: PO5806

Hong Kong, 29 April 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GelEaRkREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 E E 2019F 12 A31 HILFE

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2019 2018
20195 20184
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BtaE FTET FHT
Revenue U = 6 198,050 182,478
Cost of sales HER AR (147,744) (127,845)
Gross profit EH 50,306 54,633
Other income and other loss, net H A A K
Hoh 518 )% 28 7 (889) 2,126
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HRAX (5.337) (5,994)
Administrative expenses THRZ (53,960) (38,083)
Finance costs BF 7% PR AR 8 (3,993) (4,135)
Listing expenses FmER = (13,048)
Loss before tax MRBL AT 18 9 (13,873) (4,501)
Income tax expense FREHiF X 12 (675) (2,603)
Loss for the year FRER (14,548) (7,104)
Other comprehensive Hi2EB A (FE)
income/(loss)
ltem that may be reclassified HEensEfoEeien
subsequently to profit or loss: "B R -
Exchange differences arising on BREE4ANENZHE
translating 463 (78)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ FRE M EE WA
for the year, net of tax (B8 - MkRTIE 463 (78)
Total comprehensive loss for FRAEHEEBEARE
the year (14,085) (7,182)
Loss for the year attributable to: /G EREE :
Owners of the Company PN/NSIET DN (14,548) (7,104)
Total comprehensive loss EEFREZEEBEREAR
for the year attributable to
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIEZ RSN (14,085) (7,182)
Loss per share attributable to KARERERAEML
equity owners of the Company S E18
Basic and diluted (HK$ cents) FAR R #5E (B 14 (1.45) (0.82)

MR SR M MR 2 AR D

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

maE BB R

As at 31 December 2019 7220194 12 A31H

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BtaE FTET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RFE 5 34,025 35,691
Right of use assets ERREEE 16 4,305 -
Investment properties KEME 17 14,200 14,800
Financial asset at fair value through %A F{Ez AIB 5 HY
profit or loss TREE 22 440 440
Deferred tax assets RIEFIE & B 18 5 139
52,975 51,070
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 19 24,035 17,384
Trade receivables 2 5 eI RIE 20 44,667 43,474
Other receivables, deposits and Hih g sIE - %
prepayments SEANEN 21 30,293 6,991
Financial asset at fair value through & A F{ET ABZEHN
profit or loss TREE 22 18,740 21,020
Pledged bank deposits BIIFRITIER 23 6,718 21,701
Cash and bank balances W& KIRITHERR 23 22,190 40,333
146,643 150,903
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables Z S EMNHIER
AN 24 76,385 68,961
Other payables and accrued H Ath FE AT RIE &
expenses FERTE A 25 7,939 5,913
Contract liabilities BHBE 26 2,801 3,787
Bank overdrafts RITEL 27 1,929 -
Borrowings &% 27 42,289 42,556
Lease liabilities/obligation under HERRE ®E
finance lease FHE#AE 28 2,231 687
Tax payable e IR 1,324 1,402
134,898 123,306
Net current assets REBEETFHE 11,745 27,597
Total assets less current liabilities EEZEBABERE 64,720 78,667
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31 December

M®12A31H8
2019 2018
2019 20184
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it FExT FAT
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Lease liabilities/obligation under HEEE ®EHE
finance lease HE 28 1,743 1,605
1,743 1,605
Net assets EEFE 62,977 77,062
Capital and reserves BEAXR#E
Share capital &7 29 10,000 10,000
Reserves 1 52,977 67,062
Total equity R 62,977 77,062

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised EBEZEH 20204 A 29 B M IR RET) B
for issue by the board of directors on 29 April 2020 and signed on its RAEPB®E WARTIHRTESERE

behalf by: #=E:
CHEUK Sin Cheong Clement AU Corona Ching Mei
2EE BEx
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEF HITEF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated M RZEFEMBmEZEXDS -
financial statements.

Hanvey Group Holdings Limited 15 {& & B B R A 7



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

ma

RBBR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 E E 2019F 12 A31 HILFE

Share Share Exchange Other  Retained
Capital premium  reserves reserve  earnings Total
BE  ROEE EXRE HtHE RERF @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TR THT THT TET
At 1 January 2018 R2018F 1 A1 - - (437) 1,000 31,337 31,900
Loss for the year FAEE - - - - (7,104) (7,104)
Other comprehensive income  FREM2EMRA
for the year - - (78) - - (78)
Total comprehensive loss FRXABELESE
for the year - - (78) - (7,104) (7,182)
Capitalisation issue (note 1) BRBIT (W2 1) 7,500 (7,500) - - - -
Issue of new share by way of VAR D8 & {317
share offer (note 2) ikt (rit2) 2,500 60,000 - - - 62,500
Transaction costs attributable to B3R 17 FEIE X B A
issue of new shares - (10,156) - - - (10,156)
At 31 December 2018 and R2018F 12 A31B R
1 January 2019 20191718 10000 42344 (515 1000 24233 77,062
Loss for the year FREE - = = - (14,548)  (14,548)
Other comprehensive income  FRE M2 EUWA
for the year - - 463 - - 463
Total comprehensive income/  FRZEMRA,/ ()
(loss) for the year | = = 463 = (14,548)  (14,085)
At 31 December 2019 H2019%12A31R 10,000 42,344 (52) 1,000 9,685 62,977
Notes: et -

1.

Pursuant to a resolution in writing passed by all the shareholders of the
Company on 20 June 2018, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$380,000 to HK$10,000,000 by the creation of additional
9,962,000,000 shares. Pursuant to the capitalisation issue of the Company
passed by all the shareholders of the Company on 20 June 2018, additional
749,999,999 shares were allotted and issued to Million Easy Enterprises Ltd

on 20 June 2018.

The Company was successfully listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on
12 July 2018 by way of share offer of 25,000,000 public offer share and
225,000,000 placing shares respectively at the offer price of HK$0.25 per
share, the net proceeds after deducting the listing fee were approximately

HK$34,470,000.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 E E 2019F 12 A31 HILFE

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2019 2018
2019 % 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FEx T
Operating activities RETEE
Loss before taxation BR AT ES 18 (13,873) (4,501)
Adjustments for: BLATIEB EITHRE
Interest income ) 2 A 7 (958) (769)
Net foreign exchange gain b H Y 5 558 7 (328) (833)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  HEXR
plant and equipment, net HEEEEE 7 - (90)
Interest expenses FMERZ 8 3,993 4,135
Net loss arising from change BEWMEQNTEE
in fair value of investment BEANEBEFE
properties 7 600 200
Net loss/(gain) arising from disposal & E A FEFTA
of financial assets at fair value BENeREE
through profit or loss EEREE
(Mzs) F 8 7 1,829 (326)
Written-off of inventories FEMIE 9 455 -
Allowance for expected credit loss 5 REWFIAER
on trade receivables TEHEEEERE 9 7 -
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {# FAfEEETE 6 2,286 -
Depreciation of property, Wz BERE&EE
plant and equipment e 15 4,505 4,779
Operating cash flows before EEESBBAILE
movements in working capital BER (1,484) 2,595
Increase in inventories FEEN (7,106) (2,953)
(Increase)/decrease in trade Z 5 e IE ()
receivables Rk (1,200) 5,650
Increase in other receivables, HEWEIE  Zek
deposits and prepayments TEAT FRIE BN (23,302) (3,672)
Decrease in amounts due from an JE W B A8 PR AR A B 5RIE
ultimate holding company N - 11,118
Decrease in amount due to a director JE{t— % & = 7 IE R — (26)
Increase in trade and bills payables & 5 & 7k & FE
SEREM 7,424 16,746
(Decrease)/increase in contract AHBERECHRD) /i
liabilities (986) 3,787
Increase/(decrease) in other payables £ b & {718 % g 5+
and accrued expenses 1, Crd) 2,026 (5,559)

Hanvey Group Holdings Limited 15 {& & B B R A 7



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

Cash (used in)/generated from

operating activities
Income tax paid

Net cash (used in)/ generated from

operating activities

Investing activities
Purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Cash paid for financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Payment for acquisition of financial
asset at fair value through profit or

loss

Decrease in pledged bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash generated from

investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of share
Repayment of finance leases

Leases interest paid
Borrowings interest paid
Overdraft interest paid

Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings

Net cash (used in)/ generated from

financing activities

REEE (FTA) s
Be
RENEIEEE)

REEE (FTA) s
BREFH

REES
BEYWE BEERE

BRFHEFABRSENS
MEEMNRS
HERQFES ABR
M & B E E TSR

HEWE - BFE &&iH
S 5038
BERAVEFARR
TR EE 2R

EEMRITIEFRD
B2 WA B

REFHMEBRLFE

BMEE
AT P FRIR
EERMEHEE
ENEERNR
EHERF R
EEHE

B RS 3R

EE B

MEED (A, e
REFH

Notes

Wi

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2019
2019 &
HK$'000
FExT

(24,628)
(619)

(25,247)

(5.137)

(7,119)

7,894

14,983
634

11,255

(2,753)
(221)
(3.741)
(31
159,297
(159,564)

(7,013)

2018
20184
HK$'000
FHET

27,686
(1,894)

25,792

(3,190)

(8,776)

9,102

234

(3,996)
6,804
418

596

52,344
(187)

(35)
(4,100)
188,984
(232,519)

4,487
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁﬁiﬁéﬁ

Year ended 31 December
HZ12B31BLLEE

2019 2018
20195 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BtaE FTET FHT
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BERBESEEY
and cash equivalents CRLD) /e (21,005) 30,875
Cash and cash equivalents atthe FHHRERESZEY
beginning of year 40,333 8,418
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNFEDE R BB R B
changes 933 1,040
Cash and cash equivalents at the end €RIBE REFLHEY
of the year 20,261 40,433
Analysis of balances of cashand HBE&RRESEEUWES
cash equivalents A
Cash and bank balances R LRITHERR 23 22,190 40,433
Bank overdrafts RITEX 27 (1,929) -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated #4RERESRERZIH
in the consolidated statements of RekBLFEY
cash flows 23 20,261 40,433
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12
June 2017 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The registered office of the
Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at Unit 3, 5 and 6,
15th Floor, Tower One, Ever Gain Plaza, No. 88 Container Port
Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong. Its ultimate
holding company and immediate holding company are Million
Easy Enterprises Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in design and development,
manufacturing and distribution of watch products on original
design manufacturing (“ODM") basis for watch manufacturers,
brand owners and watch importers across the global.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 12 July 2018 (the “Listing Date").

The consolidated financial statement is presented in (“HK$" or
“HKD") which is also the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$'000), except where otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 E E 2019F 12 A31 HILFE

YNEIE-§ -

AABR2017F6 A N2BER SR
EREREHEARIEF 225 (1961
FEIPED - K456 RBFT) T
R ABERRERAR - AR AFM
% = 57 (i 1 Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands * EZ & %
B R B AN A LB EETEEE 8
FKSFES #1513 5 R6FE °
HEKERARLKEBERARAS
BESEEBRAGR (ERBHB RS
MR RR]) ©

RRABRBEERAR B AR
FERFRRERTRE(TODM]) %
RERTFHRRER  mBREEART
BOE DR REH R BERDET
SREmM °

2018F 7R 12 (LW EHHE] &
NEIBRDREBB AL SER AR
([EBE3ZFR]) GEM £7f o

RAMBHRERA (BRI 25 BT
NRRRALEMBRRNIGEE
¥-BRIEREET BRAMEESRY
HMBESEAN TR (TET) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)  Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

HK(IFRIC) = Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

HKFRS 19 (Amendments)  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

HKFRS 28 (Amendments)  Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 - 2017
Cycle

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these unaudited consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases ("HKAS 17"), and
the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS
16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this standard
to contracts that were not previously identified as containing a
lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts which
already existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance
with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether
a contract contains a lease.

BRI REBTEEYRE
BERU(TEEHBHREE
]

AEBNAEEEREAATEEE
BEHEMAR ((EEGHALF)) B
ZAME RAE TR R

ERMBHREEN HE
£16%5%

ERMBREEN  RABERIEREY
ELLACHES)

% (ABGHERE MEHEBZTETHT
2RBZEE)-
BEF 2%

BEREMBHREER  HEBL BRIEE
E195 (BFTA)

ERMBHREEN RABEATRAELE
E285 (BFTA) ZREER

EBUBREED  2015FE2017FRE

(BFTA) BEYMBHREER
M EBUE

BR T3Pt - AR R ER] R E
RIERYBHEERHARENAE
ERBEFEZHBRARKER,
MR REEZGREYBHRRZBE
WEBAZE -

ERNKBREEAFE16EEE

AEEERTFEHREAET UL
WEEBFE 169 - HEUBRESE
BIE 16 MR BB ERIFE 179
([BBSERE175%]) BENER

21

HEHEZE

AEBZERBRESR HETEAE
BEERNFE17RLEE (BRME
HERBZEE)RERLAVEET A
ZHRERRHEMBNAEEZA
WEMEEMRELENFE 165 MY
BEYIFFANAESHENG LA
SREMUER - At - AEEYEE
A EEBRERARZAEEFE
ZEHK -

HRE2019F1 A1 HSAB RT3
BEIMEHOME  AEBRTEEL
EEEEHEN  SREFBVHR
HEAE 16 HRIHENREERAEE Y
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessor

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as
either operating or finance leases using similar principles as
in HKAS 17. Therefore, HKFRS 16 did not have an impact on
leases where the Group is the lessor. The lessor accounting
requirements are brought forward from HKAS 17 substantially
unchanged.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application, 1
January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the
related lease liabilities adjusted by any prepaid or accrued
lease payments by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits and comparative information has not
been restated.

Annual Report 2019 43
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e M B|RME

2.

FER#HIREIETE B
REEA (BB BEREE
Al ) )

ERUKREEDE 16 57EE (8)
1EBH A

BB SRELNE16RABARE
HBEHERS 17 RN EAA ST EE
B o HAASBEERRE S
EBIE 17 R AN RBSHE S
BIGELSBETE - Flt - BB
MR E 16U AEE AL EAL
HETEEE ARAEBSEENS
17 EEASTETE AR EBT

@o

EBRBA
AEEDBPEAE BT KRG ER
F16RI R EREABE B120194F
1R 1BEBERRATE -

MR2019F1H1H AEEFERER
BB TR 5 £ R 2% 16 5% C8(b)(i) 5t
BEBRXERBIIN 2 HEBERER
BEE EeBESNBBAEMENK
B ENRAZRNEBEES
BEe-RBRERAHRZTMEZERE
MRBFEER B ESY|LLRE
#} e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the extent
relevant to the respective lease contracts:

(i) elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12 months
of the date of initial application;

(i) excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-
use assets at the date of initial application;

(iii) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with a
similar remaining terms for similar class of underlying assets
in similar economic environment;

(iv) used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at date
of initial application in determining the lease term for the
Group’s leases with extension and termination options;
and

(v) relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous by
applying HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets as an alternative of impairment review.

2.

FER#HIREIETE B
REEA (BB BEREE
Al ) )

ERUKREEDE 16 57EE (8)
EBEBA ()

HIREE SIS RELRE 165708
EREREREP S AEEYHB
AREEBGHENS1I7TRDEA
RN AE  WEERE Y B
o ESAnREANEBEEMNE
FLTRESE

() EEHEREEREMBEH12ME
ARTEZ HETSERERE
BENHERE:

(i) NERERBBHFASEAEEE
R B R E A

(iii) FAFIERAE HARAT 2 AR IR
MBELERIEREENHEERS
JERE—ITRE

(iv) REREBEXERBHUNFERE
NERERTARAEEALFT
ERRIDESEENEEETHE
B R

(v) FERBEBEEREI7REE -
HABAERAREEFRREF
HOERTE  UHEHEERST
BERN -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied incremental
borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at the date of
initial application. The weighted average incremental borrowing
rates applied by the relevant group entities range from 4.22%
10 6.04%.

The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to the
operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 is as

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

2.

FER#HFT KRBT ERBTK
HRELER ((BEBRBREE
All) @@
ERANMBEHREENE167REE (B)
fEBEBA (1)
ERBASEACEREHERER
HEaEr AEERFEEEEE
BREXEABREHTEEER - 48
BEBELCREAZNEFSE#TEEE
KRNF4.22% £ 6.04% °

2019F 1 A1 HMHEEEBEE2018F
12 A31 RS EFAEEIRDOT ¢

follows:
HK$'000
FHT
Operating lease commitment at 31 December 2018 2018412 A 31 B 2 & & & &I 2,071
Less: total future interest expenses B R RF B 2% (132)
Present value of remaining lease payments, RATERERMRZBTHENK
discounted using the incremental borrowing R{EK2019F181ABRAZHEAE
rate and lease liabilities recognised as at
1 January 2019 1,939
Add: obligation under finance lease 2018 12 A31HEERME
recognised as at 31 December 2018 TRE#AIE 2,292
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 201951 AV AZEEARE 4,231
Analysis as: DA
Non-current JE B 2,508
Current mE 1,723
4,231
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. EAHFIIRKEBITEEHB

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at 1

EEA(EREMBHREE

All) @@
ERANMBEHREENE167REE (B)
FERAMEA ()

R2019F 1 A1 BRMFHEREAE

January 2019 comprises the following:

BEZFEEEBSATNSE:

Notes HK$'000
Bt FHET
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases & fE A& B Y K ik&EERE 1658
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 RICEHERB o FREEE (a) 1,939
Add: Amounts included in property, e REEBSFTERZE 7%
plant and equipment under HKAS 17 A - BE R
Bl
— Assets previously under finance leases —BEINARMEHEEZEE (b 2,658
4,597
By class LAXE R E 5
Leasehold Building HEZEF 1,424
Furniture, fixtures and equipment RFL - HERE 515
Motor vehicles RE 2,658
4,597
Notes: Bt -
(@)  The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously classified as () BESERKEHEZHEMAGHE
operating leases have been recognised at an amount equal to the BECRBSENHTHEESENDER
amount recognised for the remaining lease liabilities, adjusted by the SR SRR  WIREN 20191 A
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease 1BZERERBRARERZHESRH
recognised in the statement of consolidated financial position at 1 ZEMFENSEFEEN RS RETH
January 2019. B
(b) In relation to assets previously under finance leases, the Group by HRBABERENEE A£EHE

84

recategorised the carrying amounts of the relevant assets which were
still under lease as at 1 January 2019 amounting to HKD2,658,000, as
right-of-use assets. In addition, the Group reclassified the obligations
under finance leases of HKD687,000 and HKD 1,605,000 to lease
liabilities as current and non-current liabilities respectively at 1 January
2019.

2019F 1 A1 BMBREENHABEE
R BRI 1E 2,658,000 78 ;L B 58 B (F
FREAE - b9 - REBMR 201951 A
1 B BI# 687,0007% 7T & 1,605,000 7
THREREREERRBRIEREE
EEFOEEHEAR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The following table summarises the impacts of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 on the Group’s unaudited consolidated statement of
financial position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

2.

FER#HIREIETE B
REEA (BB BEREE
Al ) )
EEUKREENE1657EE (8)
fERRMA (E)
TERBMIRAE SIS REERE 16
Y AREBEN2019F1 A1BRLEE
AR AMBERRAERNTE - W T8
HEASFEEE 288 -

Carrying Carrying
amount amount
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16 at
31 December 1 January
2018 Redlassification Adjustments 2019
BEEBHB
FETR REER
2018 % E16%
12318 R2019F
2HRH 1818
REE ENSE ik HEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET THET
Assets &E
Property, plant and equipment 1% - BB Rk {5
(note 2) (Hiit2) 35,691 (2,658) - 33,033
Right-of-use assets (note 1) FREBEWZ) - 2,658 1,939 4,597
Liabilities 8%
Lease liabilities HEAR - 2,292 1,939 4,231
Obligations under finance lease BB FAEALE
(note 3) (Hit3) 2,292 (2,292) - -
Notes: Htat -

(1) The application of HKFRS 16 to leases previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17 resulted in the recognition of right-of-use assets
of HKD 1,939,000 and lease liabilities of HKD 1,939,000 at the initial
adoption of HKFRS 16.

(2)  Motor vehicle under finance lease arrangements previously presented
within ‘Property, plant and equipment’ of HKD2,658,000 is now
presented within the line item ‘Right-of-use assets’. There has been no
change in the amount recognised.

(3)  The lease liability on leases previously classified as finance leases under
HKAS 17 and previously presented within ‘Obligations under finance
leases’ of HKD2,292,000 is now presented in the line ‘Lease Liabilities’.
There has been no change in the liability recognised.
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(1) BBAREBEESSTENEI7HSE
BICETHENTHERAABKHREE
A6 E BN B NI B BT 53R
LB R RREAEEERMA
EaE5 511,939,000 7T & 1,939,000
T

(2) BASIR[WE  BREREZE]I AR
AMELTHT 298 £ % /42,658,000
B REEVRIERAEEEIA-B
WRZ SR EEE -

(3) BAREBEBETEANE17HRIES
MEMER 2N [RERERE K
FAEB[ER2292,000%8 T BEL7
RIFAEREIRN -CHERZEESEY
mEE) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)

Definition of Material'

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)  Definition of a Business?

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or contribution of Assets between an
(Amendments) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised “Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting”
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
“Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework” in
HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all the new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

FER#FFTREEITEEBUB
HREEM(ERBUBHREE
A1) v

B FE 0 {B 15 R & AV T ET R4S
A EBMBREER

AN 30 £542 1 A A T 2 AR 618 1
KA TS RIS ST BB WS
£ :

BAGHEAE IR BANTR'
REEGER

EEVACHES)

BEMBREER  MREERE
F95 BAEH

ERE39RRE

BB REER

ENLACHE)

BRAMBREER XBOER
EEVACHRY)

BEMBREENE REFEHBELAR
108 REBAER BELEZHANE

#8285 EHESLE
CHEN

BEMBEREEDN  RBAHS
F17%

! 202091 A1 Bz B RHBNEER
R AR e

2 HARWEBEA2020F1 A1
BN EETERMRARE AR ZE

EITHEBEHREERE -
3 R2021F1 A1 Bk BREHEER
Faﬁ@i@l °©

© R B EIE 004 M S ER0 A
5 o

Br Bl E] RS T BB S &
BISN - 2018 F 24 T £&1E 5] [ IS ]
ERESIESR ] - EABESE] (AEE
RS ERIP [HHSELENRM A
185T)) #57R2020F1 A1 Bk 2B H
M FEEEER - AARIEREE
FEFFTA Fe] REIERT B B 53R
HEARAIFER ARG U AT B
WMRERERFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EXEHEBE

POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs, which is a collective term that includes
all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA,
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
discussed in Note 5.

A summary of significant accounting policies followed by
the Group in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements is set out below:

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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EHRBH
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BEAXESTHERE &)

mBLEE ()
ANEEAFTEAPMSESEE ZBE
BFRXGPHELEN NI EES
BEASZHTNER THZERES
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SEETENSEREELABENS
2 AIARSERNEETEESAENR
FEREZEZSRD - ZEREeY
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FEEHELEET  EEBREBWE
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MRS BB ERIE17HRBEENA
MEER S NERAFEFILDELE
WIHRAFEMNTE2 (ZNEBSE
BIE 25RO AT B IR FENE B LT E
RIZE 369 FEE) BRON ©

AN BB REmE AR EER
BAFENENHASIETEEIEE
FBABEBEHATEFENEREES
MDERE R FH/RE =L
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s FRBABEAERNFER
HIR RS EREEXBERE
B SRE CRERE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EXETHERBE®

POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

e  potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

®  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
noncontrolling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the noncontrolling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the
noncontrolling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and other income

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast,
a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer. A contract asset and a contract liability
relating to a contract are accounted for an presented on a net
basis.

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present value
of the amount receivable, discounting using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction with
the customer, and interest income is accrued separately under
the effective interest method. Where the contract contains a
financing component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. The Group takes advantage
of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and
does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component if the period of financing is 12 months or
less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
Further details of the Group's revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(i)

Revenue from sales of watches

Revenue from sales of watches are recognised on transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the products are delivered to
customers and title is passed.

In comparative period, revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have
passed, at which time all the following conditions are
satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Rental income

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance, from
properties let under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the respective leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EXETHERBE®

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognized as it accrues using effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortized cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to amortized cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

In comparative period, interest income from a financial
asset (other than a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss) is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of inventories is computed using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned asset.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

The property, plant and equipment is derecognised over their
estimated useful lives, after taking into account of their residual
value, on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

20% or over the lease
terms, if shorter

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery 10-20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Motor Vehicle 20%

Leasehold building over the lease term

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair
value. All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
accounted for as investment properties and are measured using
the fair value model. Gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 2)

Definition of a lease

A contract is a lease if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand- alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes both leasehold
land and non-lease building components, unless such allocation
cannot be made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of properties and motor vehicles that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise:

o fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

e the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the
lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease modification
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
and lease incentives from lessor by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the
modified contract contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to adoption of HKFRS 16
on 1 January 2019)

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statements of financial position as an obligation
under finance leases.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general
policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the period in
which they incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentive is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at the commencement date at amounts equal to
the Group’s net investment in the leases, measured using the
interest rate implicit in the respective lease. Initial direct costs
(other than those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are
included in the initial measurement of the net investments in the
leases. Interest income is allocated to accounting periods so as
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term except for investment properties
measured under fair value model. Upon application of HKFRS 16
on 1 January 2019, variable lease payments for operating leases
that depend on an index or a rate are estimated and included in
the total lease payments to be recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income when they arise.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate the
consideration under the contract to each component. Non-lease
components are separated from lease component on the basis
of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

The Group as a lessor (prior to adoption of HKFRS 16
on 1 January 2019)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straightline basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of assets other than goodwiill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All reqgular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15 since 1st January 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the
financial assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as other
revenue and other income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
OClI if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9) (Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other revenue and other
income” line item.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade and other receivables). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that are possible within
12 months after the reporting period. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting period as well as the forecast of future conditions.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
period with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9)
(Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

3.

SETBERBE ()

SR T A (8)

THEE (&)

THEERE (REMAEEYHEHRE
ERIFE9HE#) ()
EEREREZEM(E)
AEBELHAEFHEER
EmMEEEEATER

AETZE%

o EMTAMING(E)LAE
BEANEREFARBRERL

o IINETMBEERRERNBRER
& EENEARE MR ER
ARMEERORRER

s TEIEEHEHBABEERE
KiETFERER - B % &I
IR IR M EAL

s ERARERENBERNTBHRE
=8t

s ZBHEBABEGEBKENAET
fEREE  KEARMRRENE
PR FRHERE AL

Tam L A AR REBRR

EANNRafEa=1TXxX ME¥
IRRERAREER R BZEN - &
3EZ1§‘§@E/\E¥HT§E%ZE*4E§E
I FE L0 R Bl o

NEETHERBARHFEERRE
GREZEMMNIRE Y B - BISETE
A (EE ) AREIRIZLET] /T & 58 80 2
Al 35 RS B LB o 28 = 18 0 o

Hanvey Group Holdings Limited {E{Z & El#Z=ix R A 7



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9)
(Continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9)
(Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group'’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9)
(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be
available, the financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade and
other receivables and amounts due from customers are
each assessed as a separate group. Loans to related parties
are assessed for expected credit losses on an individual
basis);

. Past-due status;
e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
e  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as financial liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables, other
payable and accrued expenses (excluding receipt in advance),
bank overdraft, borrowings, lease liabilities/obligation under
finance lease) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in the profit or loss.
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e M| RME

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties transactions
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

U)
(ii)
(iif)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

an entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiaries is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group (which the other entity is a member);

both entity are joint ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employees are also related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity); or

the entity or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or the Group's parent.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties transactions (Continued)

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influence by, that
person in their dealing with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources, or obligations between
the Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price is
charged.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, which are not restricted as to use.

Dividends

Dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained earnings within the equity section of the
statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current income tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
Tract Record Period. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
tax” as reported in the consolidated statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Historical
Financial Information and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the Track Record Period
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences in monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in which they arise except for:

e exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

e exchange differences on transactions entered into in order
to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting
policies below); and

e  exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which
are recognised initially in other comprehensive income
and reclassified from equity to profit or loss according to
repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of exchange difference reserve.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

3.

EXSTBEBME®

I
REEEENEEERNM B RER
- IAZE RIS R AN ' (S
B)ETHRSHRR 5 A HNER
PE =R - MEE IR - UINERHE
MERIER DR ARNRITESRS
FIE - UINESIER A FEARZ
FEREERBEEATEERAZEX
EHBRE - RINEBERAFTENIE
EWEEHASHBRE -

EXHEMELZBENEEARNER
FERR » HEA T IB SRR D -

s AHWARLEECANEREEN
SINES 1 TR EE 3 REAR RN B
RN B AR R - [EXER
AFAZFEERNRA

o REMETINERRRME] AR
SERZE (R TXEFHE)
&

o WEF BT TARAIBEAEE R
ENBIEBNERRBERLZE
78 (FE AR EB D /B SN R TG BV IR
BFE)  REBVISREME
WA FERR L 3% B TR B HYE K
HERENDBEEES -

REFGEEMBHRERAME - AREE
IR EERBERERENRE
rH)fE R BB S ASEN 2555 (A
BTT) - WA KRR B REIAR 1
PERBE - BRIFMAERKIERS -
RUBERTRRARZEBERK -
PREARERZR (NE) REME2E
WARER LN IE S E B R AR
Rt e

Hanvey Group Holdings Limited {E{Z & El#Z=ix R A 7



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowings
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), the PRC based employees
of the Group participate in various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal
and provincial governments in the PRC under which the
Group and the employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage of the
employees’ salaries, subject to certain ceiling. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired PRC based
employees payable under the plans described above.

Other than the monthly contributions, the Group has no further
obligation for the payment of retirement and other post-
retirement benefits of its employees. The assets of these plans
are held separately from the subsidiary in an independent fund
managed by the PRC government.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

3.

EXETERERBE®

R KR A XA
ERERABNEEHANBRERME
WEAZARKNRISEF R AT o

RigHEARLME (THE ) 85 A
FNOER - AEENTEEE A2 T
B B E U B R H) % 18 E BRI
BIEFETE B AKEREER
BRREEBFHEN—TEA D LRAZ
EFHR R - HAZE T ERAR -
BREE BT AR BITIRIR L3Pt
AERMERAMBRERATERE
SRR BHE B ©

BRIz ARRIN AEBEAYEETAE
BB X ERINRINE B R B AR IR
BEN o BARRERBIRE 7 B S
AENARKE  HTFEBAEENE
MEERE °

B

fie N 5% B K@ 1 B 1 1 B AR A E 3K
HERBEL AEEREESEZX
B MZEEEWMErR SEMEE - A
TR -

ERABENSERBFEREHRY
B EEWR MR ETORR TS
PAREMBERERNRER - HER
Reng i AERREEME
Bfe EREESZERSRENR
B(HEREEZEEX) -

EARNBERENS DX BEE
MEEBrTaE =7 ko - B ER
PR B R AS A B e Rl S b
ARERKKIESRRERAREE °

Hanvey Group Holdings Limited {E{Z & El#Z=ix R A 7



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
each reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on internal
credit ratings as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group's
historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes in
the forward-looking information are considered. In addition,
trade receivables with significant balances and credit impaired
are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are
disclosed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s current income tax payable
and deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2018 and 2019
were approximately HK$1,402,000 and HK$1,324,000 and
HK$139,000 and HK$5,000 respectively.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for an asset at the end of each reporting period. The
asset is tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, an estimation of the value in use
of the cash generating units to which the asset is allocated will
be required. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. A
change in the estimated future cash flows and/or the discount
rate applied will result in an adjustment to the estimated
impairment provision previously made.

Write-down of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value at the end of the reporting period. Net realisable value is
determined on the basis of the estimated selling price less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. In
addition, the management performs an inventory review on a
product-by-product basis at the end of the reporting period and
assess the need for write-down of inventories.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision makers
("CODMs") for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
or services delivered or provided. The Group currently operates
in the manufacturing and trading business of watches. A single
management team reports to the CODMs who comprehensively
manages the entire business. Accordingly, the Group does not
have separate reportable segments.

No segment assets and liabilities are presented as they were not
regularly provided to the CODMs of the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Geographical information

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from customers located
in the Indonesia, Hong Kong, Brazil, India, Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, Australia, United Arab Emirates (“UAE") and Turkey.
The Group's revenue by the geographical location of the
customers, determined based on the location to which the
Group bills the customers, is detailed below:

7B E

AEEELEREE ((TEEBRE
) EFMEERD I Ky &R IRF
EOERETRARMRERE®
HREEIE - ARBE AR E FRE
ENBEEEK BE-EEEBRRRE
HEERREBNIELERRERE
e Hlt AEEYEBIAHRED

7B e

HREBLERRERETHRERS
ROMEERBRENERAEERD
R KRB HUEE2HROMBEE
rBE-

i 3 &
AEBEMRETZREEE  FE
B HE  DEMAAEE RN -
A faaaRE ((MEE ) LEE
HNEP - AEERFFPHIELE (R
BASEZHBEENEPHHET)
oMU ERFFBAT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2019 2018

2019 % 20184

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Indonesia ENJe 84,518 52,158
Hong Kong BB 21,563 21,344
Brazil B 17,888 25,287
India E 23,413 12,557
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia poy =R (=i ale 10,832 12,125
Australia SEM 8,973 8,704
UAE o] B4 28 3,729 7,695
Turkey THHE 2,305 3,180
Others (Note) H (K7aE) 24,829 39,428
198,050 182,478

Note: Other geographical locations are mainly located in Thailand,
Bangladesh, Switzerland, Germany, Sweden, Spain and Singapore.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)
The Group's business activities are conducted predominantly in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Information about the Group’s non-
current assets* by the geographical location of the assets is
detailed below:

5. 2EER @)
3G R ()
AEETEREERTENELY -
BEAEEREE LB SRS HIE
FBEECMEREBENT

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Hong Kong B 45,943 44,516
PRC s 6,587 5,975
52,530 50,491

* Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets and financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss.

* ERPEETEREEHEEENEA
FEFABRENEREE -
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.
Revenue from major customers
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group are as follows:

7 EBE R ()
REXTEEFHWE

AR 1 A SR 4R35 10% LA 1)
BPWHENT :

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2019 2018

2019 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Customer A ZEA 91,736 52,158
Customer B2 EPB - 25,265
Customer C! BEC 23,413 -

The segmentations are based on the information about the
operation of the Group that management uses to make
decisions and regularly review by the chief operating decision
maker of the purpose of allocating resources to segments and
assessing their performance. For the FY2019 and 31 December
2018, the Group only engaged operating segment in ODM
(Original Design Manufacturer). No analysis of the Group’s
results, assets and liabilities of other reportable segment is
presented.

Notes:

1. No information on revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 is
disclosed for this customer since it did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.

2. No information on revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019 is

disclosed for this customer since it did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.
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6. REVENUE

6. W=

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A318LEE

2019 2018

2019 20184F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FAT

Finished watches F K 146,801 135,361
SKD kits REAEEN 48,081 39,232
Watch parts F ka1 3,168 7,885
Revenue recognised at a point in time B T B T SR A Uk 2 198,050 182,478

All revenue contracts are for period of one year or less,
as permitted by practical expedient under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contract is not
disclosed. Revenue recognition are disclosed in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EEBPBREEDNE 15RO AITH

BREAOERT - %EW*AO

BE—FR—EUR  DEREZSK

*WAmm*%ﬁK%ﬁﬁ Weas e
RNEA P RERM EIRE -

7. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSS, NET 7. HitWg AR HEH A8 - F5E

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2019 2018
20194 2018 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest income FIEHA 958 769
Rental income e A 246 300
Exchange gain, net P& W W e T RE 328 833
Sundry income FEIEUA 8 8
Loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEWE « = LR E
equipment, net E1EFE - 90
Net loss arising from change in fair value & ¥ N FEZBELD
of investment properties &5 185 58 (600) (200)
Net (loss)/gain arising from disposal of HERATFEFABZED
financial assets at FVTPL TREEEEN (BB,
W s R (1.829) 326
(889) 2,126
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e M B|RME

8. FINANCE COSTS

Bt 35 AR AR

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31HLLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Interest on: AT & IEAFE -
Borrowings wholly repayable within ARAFERNTEER

five years I fE 3K 3,741 4,100

Lease liabilities/obligation under HEBR BMEMERE
finance leases 221 35
Bank overdraft interest IRITELFIB 31 -
3,993 4,135
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BR B Al &S 1]
AEEORHABAC NG ToIEE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAX 9.

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging:

Year ended 31 December

130

BZE12A31BLEE

2019 2018

2019 20184

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx T

Directors’ emoluments (Note 10) FEMNE (Kt 10) 8,419 5,296
Staff costs (excluded directors’ BIRAK(TEIEEENE)

emoluments) 13,347 12,742
Bonus 14T 1,476 749
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R k4@ F 51 21 3% 1,450 1,142
Total staff costs B TRAME 16,273 14,633

24,692 19,929
Auditors’ remuneration =R & 860 1,000
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BERZETE

equipment (Note 75) (H1it15) 4,505 4,779
Write-off of inventories (note) FEME () 455 773
Cost of inventories recognised as R AERIHFERR

expenses 124,982 121,851
Operating lease respect of: NUTRBENGEHRE -

— office equipment —MRER - 213

— rental premises —fHEYE - 1,708
Depreciation of right of use assets CREEENE (Hit16)

(Note 16) 2,286 -
Commission paid 2fRHE 1,307 1,983
Allowance for expected credit loss on B I RERFIENBEREE

trade receivables Eia e 7 -

Note: Written-off of inventories were included in cost of sales.

Hret - FEMBER ABERAE
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10. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and Section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the Companies (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation
(Cap. 622G), the aggregate amounts, the directors received
remuneration from the subsidiaries now comprising the Group

for their appointment as directors of these subsidiaries.

10.EEM <

1RIB GEM LR B KB B R AHEGIFH
383G AE (WEEFHmER) R
Pl (F£622GE)  BEZRRFEZE
RZEMBARNESBRUMEARE
I 3By B TS PR % B U B 5 B A

R e

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2019 2018

2019 % 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Directors’ fees EEEE 675 225
Salaries and other benefits TEREMET 5,890 4,667
Discretionary bonus IS TEAL 1,800 350
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R K78 F 51 2 5% 54 54
8,419 5,296

The remuneration of each of these directors as recorded in the

financial statements of the subsidiaries is set out below:

MERRPBHRPLENZSES

EEMNFMHEIIMT

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZ2019512A31BLEE

Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and other Discretionary scheme
fee benefits bonus contributions Total
I8R BRER
ExHe Hitt & F BERA ot B K @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THET TERT FERT TET
Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Cheuk (note (a)) 25 (i (@) - 4,090 1,550 18 5,658
Mrs. Cheuk (note (b) ~ BAK (K5t b)) - 1,200 100 18 1,318
Ms. Heide Cheuk Sl +
(note (c)) (Wit () - 600 150 18 768
Independent non- BNFRTES !
executive directors:
Mr. Yu Sau Ning REELE  MH
Homer M.H. 180 - - - 180
Mr. Zhao Zhipeng AL E 180 - - - 180
Ms. Yee Wai Fong REFRT
Wendy 180 - - - 180
Mr. Liu Ngai Wing BRELE
(note (d) (fiat(d) 135 - - - 135
675 5,890 1,800 54 8,419
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

10. EEM < @)

Year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018FE 12 A3 BIEEE

Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Salariesand  Discretionary scheme
fee  other benefits bonus  contributions Total
T8N RAKER
EETEn H A i@ # [N Rial BEES FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FTAT FTAT FHT FHT
Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Cheuk (note (a)) FRE T @G) - 2,867 150 18 3,035
Mrs. Cheuk (note (b)) ~ SAK(Ba# b)) - 1,200 100 18 1,318
Ms. Heide Cheuk BB T
(note (c)) (W) - 600 100 18 718
Independent non- BNFRTES !
executive directors:
Mr. Yu Sau Ning REZLE  MH.

Homer M.H. 75 - - - 75
Mr. Zhao Zhipeng AL E 75 - - - 75
Ms. Yee Wai Fong REFRT

Wendy 75 - - - 75

225 4,667 350 54 5,296

Notes: Biat -

(@)  Mr. Cheuk is the directors of Beyond Blossom, Precise Time, Big Hope, (a) BEAERBEK- B ZR&H #R- 2

Diamond Fountain, Vast Peak, Talent Gift, 3 Wells, Cheer China, Cheer FEB =ZH BE -@®BF BEAIR

Wells, Creative Profit and Shenzhen 3 Wells and has been appointed
as chairman, chief executive officer and executive director of the

Company on 12 June 2017.

(b)  Mrs. Cheuk is the directors of Beyond Blossom, Precise Time, Big Hope, (b)
Diamond Fountain, Vast Peak, Talent Gift, 3 Wells, Cheer China, Cheer F
Wells, Creative Profit and Shenzhen 3 Wells and has been appointed as

executive director of the Company on 12 June 2017.

() Ms. Heide Cheuk has been appointed as executive director of the

Company on 12 June 2017.

(d)  Mr. Liu Ngai Wing has been appointed as independent non-executive (d)

director of the company on 1 April 2019.

During the reporting period, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
Directors did not waive or agree to waive any emoluments

during the reporting period.

FIN=ZHOEEILER2017F6 812
AEZTEARRBER  ITHEEHFNR
TESE-

BAKNABHE EH EH BB
CEB = BEBHFBAR
FIN=ZHBHESWEN2017F6 12
AEZEARATMNITES -

(0 BYEZLER2017F6NEES
EAERARRITES -

BRAKRETR2019F4 A1 BERT
BARNBBMIEWITES -

WEHARN AEEHBEAARRES
SAEB - (ERTSIE AR IIA
AEEE 2 2R - SFRRERMEE -
BERA EFVEREXRBNE
EEE -
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11. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the years

ended 31 December 2019 included three (2018: three) directors
and details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 10 above.
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company or the five highest paid individuals
(inducing directors and employees) as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2018: two)
highest paid employees who are not directors are as follows:

MNEEMESREREEENS

HE2019F12A31BILFE - A&
EnNhAfseEE82E34 (2018
F:3R)EE  BENFHFBIR
EXEE10 - FA - AEBWERA
RREETRAEESTWAL(BIE
EENEE) IMENBESIEARE
AR AN A A £ E B K SR sk 1E A K
KB AFEE - 2T 24 (20184 < 2
BB FWES (LIIEES) e
ESSNE

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2019 2018

2019 F 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FET

Salaries, allowance and benefit in kind ~ T& ~ 2B R EWEF] 1,267 1,039
Bonuses TEAT 271 170
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R K78 F 51 2 7% 36 36
1,574 1,245

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose emoluments fell within the
following bands is as follows:

FIBRA THENRSEHMER (XL
FARRBES) ABIAT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2019 2018

2019 F 20184

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 2 2
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FTSHHAX

134

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

The Group is subjected to Hong Kong Profits Tax at a rate of
16.5% for the year ended 31 December 2019.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from the current year, one of the
subsidiaries of the Company is subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at the rate of 8.25% for the first HK$2 million of estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million. Other subsidiaries of the Company
are subjected to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5% for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

REFESEFENABHEARES ([X
BHREBRES] R RAEM - KE
BHEARRERENABHEBRES
BNERAEHR -

HZE2019F 12 831 HILFE » K&
7817 16.5% 2 B RBUMEBFEH -

MR2018%3 A21H BB ASRG
2017 FHiH (BE]) (B 75%) BPIER
(MMEpIEZ]) - 5| ARRBIFIEE
1EHIEZ=N 201843 A28 HEEX A
ERIRBHTIEER - RIERAH
FEH cEREEERE2HEST
i 32 8.25% MR R BT TE - W
TBiR2 E 8B TR R M 15 12 16.5% B
TREBURTRTE - TR & M AR 6 RS 8
MEEEERNBEER —1£165%
B -

Hit, - B5FRG - AAaHFP—K
MEAR ARG 2B BB THNEE
SRR3R 8.25% BT RN E B T
BF - WARBBE2AEATHE
JE BT F 3R 16.5% BB R - &
Z2019 12 A31BILEE - KA T
H b B A B A 16.5% BT R B4R
EBFEM
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
The subsidiary of the Group established in the PRC is generally
subjected to PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) on its taxable
income at an income tax rate of 25%.

12. FTBEHAXZ @
AEEHRRNBATBE
B A SRR ST R 25% SR b B3
FieR ([DEFEH]) -

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A831BLLEE

/AL IE R

2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Tax charge comprises: IEmMZ BT

Current tax BVHARE 18
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BABFEH 537 2,477
—PRC EIT —HEPEMRER 4 126
541 2,603

Deferred tax ERERIE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax — BABMNER 134 -
675 2,603

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for jurisdiction in which the
Company’s and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to
the tax expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

BARBRERNES M ERBER
AR R B A TE B R 5T B9 B B A A
ERNAETHAX BEERHREGH
MBI ST R S BRIA T -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLEE

2019 2018

2019 F 20184

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHxT FHTT

Loss before tax MR AR (13,873) (4,501)
Tax at the applicable income tax rates RERAMSHEFENHIE (2,258) (509)
Tax effect of non-taxable incomes AL ON: (205) (333)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HIB A MR B 2 2,278 2,992
Tax loss not recognised RIERH TS BB 726 453
Other HA 134 -
675 2,603
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13

14.

B BHRRME

. DIVIDENDS
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the FY2019 (2018: nil).

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since
the date of its incorporation.

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share are calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

13.

14.

S
R2019FHREE - EFETEHR
REREAIEE (20184 1 &) -

RN B B AL B H DA SR M K A
FEIREMRARSE

ZREE
SREABRIZAD EE AR
BRI E 1T R I0HET 15
YEE -

2019 2018
20194 2018 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Loss fi=]
Loss attributable to owners of the RARHEE ANEILEE
Company (14,548) (7,104)
Number of shares (thousands) BHER (LF5H)
Weighted average number of ordinary st E&RER R #FEEN
shares for calculating basic and diluted & i % hntE S 5 £¢
loss per share 1,000,000 867,808

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, diluted
loss per share are the same as the basic loss per share as the
Company did not have any potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

HZE2019F N 2018F 12 A31 BIEF
& HARARRIEHZE2019F % 20184F
12 A31 BIEFEWEETETELBR
BTSN WEREEEIEEGREA
REEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥ BEERRKRE

Furniture,
Leasehold Plantand  fixtures and Motor Leasehold
improvement ~ machinery  equipment vehicles building Total
e )
HEXE HEREE e ] RE HEEF @zt
HKSO00  HKS00 K000 HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000
TET TET TET TET AT AT
Cost HA
Asat 1 January 2018 R018E1A1H 14173 6,197 6,742 4,049 30,110 61,271
Additions ﬂ?‘\ﬁ 1,981 290 474 2,29 - 5,039
Disposals & - - - (509) - (509)
Exchange realignment R (153) (268) (105) (17) - (543)
At 31 December 2018 R2018E12A31H 16,001 6,219 7,111 5817 30,110 65,258
Adjustments upon application ~ EFE BRI B K8
HKFRS 16 F16HENEE - - - (2923) - (2923)
1 January 2019 (restated) R2019F1 A 1B (BE3) 16,001 6,219 711 2,804 30,110 62,335
Additions HE 2,689 2,165 283 - - 5137
Exchange realignment EAAE (78) (170) (53) (9) = (310)
Transfer fromright of use assets ~ BEEFHELE - - - 776 - 776
At 31 December 2019 M2019%12A31H 18,612 8214 7341 3,661 30,110 67,938
Accumulated depreciation RiHE
Asat 1 January 2018 R2018F 1718 10,395 3,600 4302 2,236 4878 25411
Charge for the year A 2,380 438 79 549 620 4,779
Eliminate on disposal of assets RN EEAERHH - - - (365) - (365)
Exchange realignment R A% (52) (138) (65) B - (258)
At 31 December 2018 R2018E 128318 12,723 3,900 5,029 2417 5498 29,567
Adjustments upon application  JEF BB RS IR E 8
HKFRS 16 F165RNIE - - - (265) - (265)
1 January 2019 (restated) R2019%F 1718 (LE]) 12,123 3,900 5,029 2,152 5498 29,302
Charge for the year FRARH 2,073 527 818 264 823 4,505
Exchange realignment Ei@g (49) (91) (36) 6)] = (179)
Transfer from right of use assets ~ BEEERELEE - - - 285 - 285
At 31 December 2019 R2019E12831H 14,747 4,336 5811 2,698 6,321 33913
Carrying amount BEE
At 31 December 2019 R2019E12831R 3,865 3,878 1,530 963 23,789 34,025
At 1 January 2019 (restated) #2019% 1 A1 8 (HE3) 3278 2319 2,082 742 2,612 33,033
At 31 December 2018 R2018E12831H 3,278 2,319 2,082 3,400 24,612 35,691
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR RME

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. )% - BMERRE @)
(Continued)
All the Group’s leasehold building are situated in Hong Kong. TEE2RHEEFURES
As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the carrying amount of HZE2018F K2019F 128318 ' 5
motor vehicles included an amount of HK$2,780,000 and ENEOEREREREERE ®ME
HK$NIl, respectively in respect of assets held under lease HERBNEERM$E 2,780,000 5
liabilities/finance leases. TTREETT -
The Group has pledged property, plant and equipment with H=2018412H31HK20194F
a carrying amount of approximately HK$24,231,000 and 12A318  AEBEEKREED L
HK$23,422,000 as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 24,231,000 7T }. 23,422,000 7% 7T &9
2019, respectively, to secure general banking facilities granted BEFME  BERBRHEERER
to the Group as disclosed in Note 32. REBMER —BRBTHRENER R

Mst 324 5E) o

138 Hanvey Group Holdings Limited 15 {& & B B R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

16. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS 16. EHREEE

Furniture,
Motor  fixtures and Leasehold
Vehicles equipmenﬁt Building Total
RE Y] HEEF st
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET THL THT TR
Cost A
As at 1 January 2018 R2018F 1 A1H
Additions NE _ _ _
Disposals HE - - -
Exchange realignment [E 5 E - - - _
At 31 December 2018 ©®2018F12A31H - - - -
Adjustments upon application ERERIBREER
HKFRS 16 FI6RKAR 2,923 515 1,424 4,862
1 January 2019 (restated) R2019% 1 A1 B (KE7)) 2,923 515 1,424 4,862
Additions AE 756 - 1,740 2,496
Exchange realignment I R . - = (30) (30)
Transfer to property, plant and BREEYE  BEREE
equipment (776) - - (776)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31H 2,903 515 3,134 6,552
Accumulated depreciation 25t RE
As at 1 January 2018 R2018F1 A1 A - - - -
Charge for the year FAZH
Eliminate on disposal of assets & B E R - - - -
Exchange realignment P % R - - -
At 31 December 2018 2018512 4318 - - - -
Adjustments upon application ERERMBREE
HKFRS 16 F16RRAR 265 - - 265
1 January 2019 (restated) R2019F1 A 18 (BE7) 265 = = 265
Charge for the year ERXH 545 138 1,603 2,286
Exchange realignment JE 5 2 \ - = (19) (19)
Transfer to property, plant and BEENE BEREE
equipment (285) - - (285)
At 31 December 2019 R2019% 12 4318 525 138 1,584 2,247
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2019 201912 A318 2,378 377 1,550 4,305
At 1 January 2019 (restated) 201951 A1 R (KE5) 2,658 515 1,424 4,597

At 31 December 2018

R2018F 12 A31H
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e M| RME

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. BEWE

As at 31 December

R12A318
2019 2018
2019 % 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T
Fair value AFE
Balance at beginning of year FUEERR 14,800 15,000
Net loss arising from change in fair value %E&E Y% N FEZF
of investment properties EENEETE (600) (200)
Balance at end of year FRERR 14,200 14,800

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rental income or for capital appreciation purpose are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The investment properties shown above comprises:

AEBRRIVES BALEARTHEM
REGEHEFHNMREDIRA
RFERBGE AN BRARAKR

EXFARHREMERLE

As at 31 December

®W12A318
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
In Hong Kong WEE
— medium-term leases —HHHE 14,200 14,800
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e M B|RME

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWE )

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2019 at HK$14,800,000
and HK$14,200,000, respectively has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by Assets
Appraisal Limited for Hong Kong properties, independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group who
have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

At each of financial year end, the management of the Group will
(i) verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report;
(i) assess property valuation movements when compared to
prior year valuation report; and (iii) holds discussion with the
independent valuer.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfer
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There has been no change to the valuation technique during the
year ended 31 December 2018 and 2019.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The fair value was determined based on direct comparison
method assuming sale of the property interest in its existing
state and making references to comparable market observable
transactions of similar properties in similar locations and
conditions as available in the relevant market. Those comparable
properties are analysed and carefully weighed against all
respective advantages and disadvantages of each property in
order to arrive at a fair comparison of value.

The Group’s investment properties with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$14,800,000 and HK$14,200,000 as at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2019, was pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in
Note 32.
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AEERIEEMZER2018F 12 H 31
HX2019F12 A31 BN AFESD 7
/414,800,000 7T & 14,200,000 7%
T DEREEFERBAERAFTR
ZHE B RS EEWEETNGER
B AEFJEEMERARAEARE
B EEANNBLAEREEMEA
B - MEEABEMNEE KR ER
@B U EEITHENER -

REVRFEFHER  AEEEERE
BOZEBLAERSOAEIESR
ABE () HEERBEFEHERS
L8z MEMEED - K (i) BB
(I E

AR ENEE ARRRE S HEB
FHSERBY AT EEREA
RS ER o

HZE2018F K& 2019F 12 A31 HIEF
EREEF AT EEE -

EHESMENDTERS KSR
MBARBERE A A AR -

RFEDREZLBOERETE @ BIRR
MERDEERRTHEL L2 ERE
MR 5 Al SR B AR
BRI B F] & LB 5 H) AT B
X5  DHZEAELBYEETS
o YERERGRMESEZMAE
Bh N BRES  VER AR FELE -

HZE2018412A31H &20194F12
A318 - RE#ESD 54 14,800,000
770 % 14,200,0008 LRI BEYEE,
EIRERAEEEE —RIRITREDN
ER(AMIFER2HE) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWE @)
Fair value hierarchy NEEZER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement THRMEAEBIREY LN A TES
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties: B

Fair value measurement using
significant unobservable inputs

(Level 3)
RABEXTIBEBAREN
DNFEFE (FE3R)
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2019 2018
2019 % 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHEIT
Recurring fair value measurement for: UTEENREML R EGTE
— Industrial properties located in —RBBNITEME
Hong Kong 14,200 14,800
14,200 14,800
The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 72018 12 A31H & 201912 A
December 2018 and 31 December 2019 are estimated by using 3B - REEREMEN R FETIER
significant unobservable inputs and the fair value measurement REART AR ABURETTRE -
is categorised under Level 3. NEPEFENEREIR -
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e MBRE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

B &£

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

For investment properties categories into Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy, the following information is relevant:

Class of
property
MEER

Fair value
hierarchy

DFEESR

Valuation technique

fhEt &

17. BREWZE (&)
ATLEZH(E)

HRD B/ R FEBREIRNKE

WE - UTEHSERER

Significant unobservable input(s)

EATTRERAYE

Sensitivity

RN

Properties located in
Hong Kong

WRNEikYES

Annual Report 2019 43

Level 3

E3H

Direct comparison

method

BEREBE

Compare properties of similar size,
character and location are analysed
and carefully weighted against all

the respective advantages of each
property in order to arrive at a fair
comparison of capital values. Market
unit value, taking into account the
differences in location, and individual
factor, such as frontage, location and
size, between the comparables and
the property.
SEREE R ZTELR
MEELDT  WREESEMER
w EREEY  NERLFELEE
ZUR -TSBNER  SERLE
MEZ REARRER  ma L&Y
ERMEBNTR B RERE -

A slight increase in the

market price would result in a
significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa.

TR EHATE
BEEI - B2 -
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e M| RME

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within

17. BEWE (@)
DAREZER(

n= )

DRRRFEEBREIANEENE

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: HEE

Industrial
properties in
Hong Kong
NREEBN
TR
HK$'000
FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 R20184F 1 A1 HHREE 15,000
Fair value changes NEEEH (200)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 and 201812 A31HK2019F 1 A1 2
1 January 2019 FREE 14,800
Fair value changes NEEEF) (600)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 ®20195F12 A31 A ZREE 14,200

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 18. EEBIREE

Tax losses
REBE
HK$'000
FHETT
As at 1 January 2018 M2018F1 A1 H 139
Credit to profit or loss during the year (Note 12)  E Rt A8 (HfE12) -
As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 MR2018F 12 H31 B X 2019F1H1H 139
Charge to profit or loss during the year (Note 12) FR{EBzEM% (HiF12) (134)
As at 31 December 2019 2019612 A31H 5

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$2,083,000 (2018: HK$2,925,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such losses to the extent of HK$30,000 (2018:
HK$842,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining unused tax losses of HK$2,053,000
(2018: HK$2,083,000) due to the unpredictability of the future
profit streams. All unused tax losses arising from Hong Kong

Company.

M2019%12 318  "EBAHRIE
A #9 7 7% 85 18 2,083,00078 7T (2018
£ 12,925,000 7C) Al ARERR
g o bl A 75 B 18 E A 30,0008
70 (2018 4F : 842,000/87T) B R A
ERERIE & & - H #2,053,000% 7T
(20184F : 2,083,000 7T) K & F &9
RSB EBIARER  BAAKRK G #

VATEGA] » PR R AE A B B 75 B 1818 21

BEBAA -
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eV BHRRME

19. INVENTORIES

19. 78

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T
Raw material =41 11,238 9,030
Work in progress E& 7.440 7,280
Finished goods BIRY G 5,357 1,074
24,035 17,384

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

20. E5 EW KA

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade receivables 2 5 rEWEIE 45,068 43,868
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEBBRE (401) (394)
44,667 43,474

The Group generally allows credit period ranging from 30 days
to 90 days to its customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR RME
20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. E 5 EWRIE (@)
The aged analysis (based on invoice date) of the Group’s trade TEERESRERARRNE S EIRK
receivables (after provision of impairment) as at the end of each 1B (FIRR R E R HR) ERE R A8
of reporting period is as follows: FRECHTINT -
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2019 2018
2019 % 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
0 to 30 days 0230H 20,178 22,246
31 to 60 days 31260H 10,879 11,557
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,716 4,340
Over 90 days #90H 11,894 5,331
44,667 43,474
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
HKD BT 28,207 25,203
usb ET 16,165 18,175
RMB AR 295 9
44,667 43,474
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e M B|RME

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. B 5 EWFIE (9)

The Group has policy of allowing its trade customers with credit
period normally ranging 30 to 90 days or in accordance with
agreed terms of the contracts with customers. However, for
certain customers with long-established relationship and good
repayment records, a long credit period may be granted more
than 90 days.

The Group has a policy for allowance of impairment which
is based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis
of accounts and on management’s judgement including
the creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer.

Movement in the allowance for expected credit loss on trade
receivables is as follow:

AEEFTRRAFRTHEESER
— BN F30E0HHEE KB E
HEFHTENEOKEIEHEER -
R BRETFTAERBABERER
RERTNER  AEESEREE
BOOHMERREER-

AEBEREBERBERR - HRIER
FREY AT U 0 B B8 2 R A M AR iR 0 AT A
LREEBMALE BERSEPNER
KB EW R RS ML -

B S EWFBNBEEEE BB EE
;T

As at 31 December

MW12A318
2019 2018
2019 % 20184F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
Balance as at beginning of year FYEEER 394 394
Allowance for expected credit loss TEHEEEERE 7 -
Balance as at end of year FRER 401 394

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$15,035,000 and HK$14,078,000 as at 31 December 2018
and 2019, respectively which were past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss as the Group considered such balances could be
recovered based on historical experience. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.
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MR2018F & 2019F 12 4318 K&
EME ZEGERIERmMEED 5
#915,035,000%8 7T & 14,078,000 7% 7T
RIEMBR X - R SRR A 3R &E HA
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e M| RME

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. B 5 EWFIE (9)

148

Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade
receivables that are past due but not impaired are generally
recoverable.

The Group's policy for impairment loss on trade receivables is
based on an evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis
of the receivables which requires the use of judgment and
estimates. Provisions are applied to the receivables when
there are events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The management closely
reviews the trade receivable balance and any overdue balances
on an ongoing basis and assessments are made by the
management on the collectability of overdue balances.

Details of impairment assessment under expected credit loss
model of trade receivables for the year ended 31 December
2019 set out in Note 37.

*ETF$‘§IE’B&?EW%§’E - B ERE R OR
BERE 5 RYGRIR R S A e -

AEBEBEZRYGERBERBEDN
Eﬁz R Y E A FE MR IR /O AT UK (B 1 BT (i

Rl B EROMTERE
%%\Jlﬁﬁﬁﬂéﬁ cEBAEMHBRLEXBR
BE BRI RERAER AR - BE
FLBMGRIBE L S - EEESHE
G féf%ﬁg%z KIR A M AE A8
HIBRER - WRLRE A U 78 BRERRR 1 (H
BRCE

HE2009F12A3MBHLEFEE -85
FEURGRIBRIZTE Bl E B 1B R S AT 1E
BB EF BRI FEI7 -
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PN B
21. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 21. HthEWRIE - ZERFEN
PREPAYMENTS EN
As at 31 December
M®12A31H8
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx FAET
Other receivables H b B Uk 318 1,061 805
Deposits e 714 36
Prepayments SCENE 28,518 6,150
30,293 6,991
22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22 BAFEFTABEZNERE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =
As at 31 December
M®12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx FET
Non-current assets EREEE
Unlisted club debentures (Note (a)) K ETRELIES (Wit @) 440 440
Current assets MEEE
Held-for-trading security FIEEERS 1,392 3,996
Key management personnel life insurance EZ &1 A 8 AFRE
policies (Note (b)) (K13 ) 17,348 17,024
18,740 21,020
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e M| RME

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS/OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)
Notes:

(@)  Upon application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the unlisted club
debentures are reclassified from AFS financial assets. As at 1 January
2018 and 31 December 2018, the fair value of the club membership
is arrived on the basis of a valuation carried out by an independent
professional valuer.

(b)  On 19 September 2013, a subsidiary of the Company has entered
into a life insurance policies (the “Policies”) to insure directors of
the Company, Mr. Cheuk and Mrs. Cheuk. Under the policies, the
beneficiary and policy holder is a subsidiary of the Company and
the total insured sum is USD5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$38,750,000). The Group is required to pay an upfront deposit of
USD1,936,757 (equivalent to approximately HK$15,010,000). The
Group can terminate the Policies at any time and receive cash back
based on the cash value of the Policies at the date of withdrawal,
which is determined by the upfront payments plus accumulated
interest earned and minus the accumulated insurance charge and
policy expense charge. The Group receives an interest at interest rates
guaranteed by the insurer. The fair value is based on redemption value
quoted by the insurance company.

The entire amount of the rights under life insurance policies is
denominated in United States Dollar.

The Group has pledged the policies as at 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2019 to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group as disclosed in Note 32.

Upon application of HKFRS 9, the key management personnel life
insurance polices with amount approximately of HK$17,348,000 are
required to be held as FVTPL as these products do no meet the HKFRS
9 criteria as solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

2. BAFEFAEZENEHE
= ()

Mt

(@) M2018%F1 A1 BEBESHBEHRE &
AISEOSRIE - R ETMERIELRAN
HHESRHEEEHNHE - 201861
A1HK&2018F 12 A31 0 A% %e
B AT EREIB T B E G ERETT
HEESE -

(b) 20139 H19H » AR AWK B
AIBFIASRBE (RE] AEALQ
AIESERAERERKER - RER
EoARAKMBARAZEARER
A v #4835 R % /55,000,000 7T (HHE
M #)38,750,000/8 L) - AEBAX
I8 41,936,757kt (BE R L
15,010,000 7T) © A5 B ] B b5 42 1E
REWRIEREEE BIRER S (EEURER
RSN - IS IR AR IR T FOINBRER
B R FEERERTREERRIRE
BET - REBBIZIRE QR EROF)
RUTELF B - RFENREB A RIRE®
i ol (B /R % -

ABRRET RN SBIAETA
B~

20184 12 A31H & 2019412 A 31
B AEBEEIFRE  (EAREEE
F—RIRITRUE PR (W32 P

&) -

RERBEEHBHMELNFEIRR &
FHA /17,348,000 B THEEEE AR
ABRENTEBEEMBMELRF9
RSN AERAREERSFEZ
RE - BmARAFEFABRERE -
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e M B|RME

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED 23. & KRBT UREIKHH

BANK DEPOSITS

For the purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the reporting period as shown in the consolidated
statements of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items
in the consolidated statements of financial position as follows:

RITHERK
RREGARSRERME  BeR
ReEBYEEFERS RBTFR
(BMBREERITEL - FARSE
RERMIGREHRNRERASS
B B AERA B R HOR R AT
BEEE - TR

As at 31 December

M®12A31H8
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHETT
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTTHER 22,190 40,333
Bank overdrafts (Note 27) R1TBXZ (Kat27) (1,929) -
20,261 40,333

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits. Bank balances carry interest at
prevailing market rate ranging from 0.35% to 1.75% and 0.5%
t0 2.1% per annum as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2019, respectively.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.
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e M| RME

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED 23. & KRBT UREIKHH

BANK DEPOSITS (Continued)

The Group have Renminbi (“"RMB"”), HKD and United States
Dollar (“USD") denominated cash and bank balances, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk. RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s RMB and USD denominated monetary assets at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

WITER @
REBESARE (AR BT
RET(ER]) HENES RBTL
#%o RMSAEEEHEIINERR - A
RETA AR RAHMES - NiE
EHK  AEEARYRETIHE
S EEREDMENT

As at 31 December

M12A831H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
RMB ARE 125 420
usD ETT 3,149 18

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. As at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2019, the Group has bank
deposits of approximately HK$21,701,000 and HK$6,718,000
are pledged to secure banking facility and are therefore
classified as current assets. The pledged bank deposits will be
released upon the settlement of relevant bank borrowings. The
balance as at 31 December 2019 were carried at the prevailing
market interest rate at 1% per annum and it was denominated
in HKD.

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

BRI HIEERE TAEEIR
TRERMERTRITHOTK - 1422018
F£12H31HK%2019F12 A31H &
EEMIRITERAI21,701,00078 7T &
6,718,000 LB T M ARG IR TBY
Al pBEARBEE - DB
RITHFE RGN EERBRITERIER
Mo B2 2019512 A31 BR& & U
WM EFNREF 1% 8L AB T
EIRERE

2. E5BAREARENRE

As at 31 December

®W12A318
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Trade payables B 5 e I8 39,643 34,888
Bills payables ANE 3 36,742 34,073
76,385 68,961

152 Hanvey Group Holdings Limited 15 1& & B B R A 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

The credit period on trade payables is generally 30 to 120 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are paid within the credit time frame.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of each reporting period:

2. EFRNRERENRE

N
(48)

BHORMNFBEBNEESHRE 2302
1208 - AEEE #ES B ERKEE
BE - BERMEENRBEREESRR
T Ao

AT REHRERRREEZAHZ7
ME RN RIBNRE DN

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
0 to 30 days 0&30H 8,200 11,083
31 to 60 days 31260 H 11,848 11,608
61 to 90 days 61290 H 11,702 10,115
91 to 120 days 91 & 120 H 7,707 385
Over 120 days #1120 H 186 1,697
39,643 34,888

Bills payables are all mature within 30 to 120 days. The
following is an aged analysis of bills payables presented based
on the date of bills at the end of each reporting period:

JEMEZHEHGMN30E 120 H R EBEY - A
TASREFRBEZEBHR7H
JEAT EE M ERE D AT ¢

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 14,209 12,067
31 to 60 days 31260H 11,219 14,857
61 to 90 days 61290 H 10,006 6,568
91 to 120 days 91 £120H 1,308 581
36,742 34,073
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25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

25. HttENREBERESTER

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Salary and bonus payables FESH & RIEAT 2,762 2,667
Other payables H A fE A IR 3,026 906
Accrued expenses FEETE A 2,151 2,340
7,939 5,913

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

Billings in advance of performance (Note) [&#) 2 Y814 708 (H1at)

M12A31H
2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
2,801 3,787

Note: Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously included as
“Receipts in advance” under “Other payable and accrued expense”
(note 25) were reclassified to contract liabilities.

Wiz . RAEEMBEREEINE 155K - £
AR A HMENREREER]
ey [FREGR (M 25) B D EES
WaIME-
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26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 26. SNEE®
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract HERREHNBESEERTEN—
liabilities recognised as follows: M TR T
2019 2018
2019 F 20184F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Balancing amount, 1 January R1 A1 HME 3,787 6,057
Consideration received ERE 1,410 2,295
Revenue recognized BRI = (2,396) (4,565)
Balancing amount, 31 December M12 A31 BE#REE 2,801 3,787
Generally, the Group receives a lump sum amount of product WY AEEBERRPEIIANRFESHE
fee in advance for a specified range of time from customers BERHEERNTE LW —ZFE R
when they sign the contract. This lump sum amount received is B BT ESVEERAESLNE
recognised as a contract liabilities initially and to be recognised F WHEBAHSEREER RN -

as revenue at the point in time when performances obligation
are satisfied.

27. BORROWINGS/BANK OVERDRAFTS 27. B3 BRITEX
As at 31 December
M®12A31H8
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current — secured BNEf— B H
Bank overdrafts (note (c) RITET (B2 () 1,929 -
Bank loans (note (a), (b), (c), (d)and (e)  $RITE K (K15t @) ~ (b)
© (@) X)) 42,289 42,556
44,218 42,556
Non-current — secured JEBNHE— A& K1
Bank loans RITER - -
Total borrowings EEEE 44,218 42,556
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27. BORROWINGS/BANK OVERDRAFTS (Continued)

According to the repayment schedule, the bank loans and bank
overdrafts are repayable as follows:

27. BB 1T

N
\7\ﬁ}

*Ebfiamﬁﬁ'ﬁi% RITERNIRITE

TIERWOT ¢

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2019 2018
20194 2018 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Within one year —FRK 44,218 42,556
Over one year but within two years —FUAEERMEA - -
Over two years but within five years MER EEBERAFR = -
Over five years AFEMUE - -
44,218 42,556
Less: amount classified as current W D BERN—F AR HI
liabilities secured borrowings B R EJGERIGEK
due within one year or contain a KMnB A EEERN
repayment on demand clause fERFE (44,218) (42,556)
The variable-rate borrowings are as follows: BERWMT :
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Variable-rate borrowings FEER (MA@ (b))
(note (a), (b), (c), (d) and (e)) (@) k) 44,218 42,556
44,218 42,556
Hanvey Group Holdings Limited {E{Z & El#Z=ix R A 7
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27. BORROWINGS/BANK OVERDRAFTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The universal life insurance loan and factoring facility (“Facility 1”) of
approximately HK$891,000 and HK$Nil as at 31 December 2018 and
2019 respectively. As at 31 December 2018, Facility | was corporate
guarantee by Hanvey Group Holdings Limited and secured by the
policies with carrying amount of approximately HK$17,024,000. As at
31 December 2019, Facility | was secured with corporate guarantee
provided by Hanvey Group Holdings Limited with carrying amount
of approximately HK$17,348,000. Facility | bear interest ranged from
3.75% to 4.25% and Nil per annum for the year ended 31 December
2018 and 2019, respectively.

The term loan, property mortgage, overdraft and factoring facility
("Facility 11") of approximately HK$2,478,000 and HK$4,297,000
as at 31 December 2018 and 2019 respectively. As at 31 December
2018, Facility Il was guaranteed by Mr. Cheuk and Mrs Cheuk and
corporate guaranteed by Billion Start Enterprise Limited. As at 31
December 2019, Facility Il was secured with corporate guaranteed
provided by Hanvey Group Holdings Limited. Facility Il bear interest
ranged from 3.6% to 5.3% and 4.5% to 5.68% per annum for the
year ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, respectively.

The term loan, overdraft and factoring facility (“Facility 11") of
approximately HK$39,187,000 and HK$25,029,000 as at 31
December 2018 and 2019 respectively. As at 31 December 2018,
Facility Il was guaranteed by Mr. Cheuk and Mrs. Cheuk, secured
by the property, plant and equipment with carrying amount of
approximately HK$24,231,000, investment property with carrying
amount of approximately HK$14,800,000 and bank deposits
HK$21,701,000 as at 31 December 2018. As at 31 December
2019, Facility Il was guaranteed by Hanvey Group Holdings Limited,
pledged property, plant and equipment with carrying amount of
approximately HK$23,422,000, investment property with carrying
amount of approximately HK$14,200,000 (Note 17) and bank deposits
HK$6,718,000 (Note 23) as at 31 December 2019. Facility Ill bear
interest ranged from 2.4% to 3.5% and 3.5% to 3.88% per annum
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, respectively.

The term loan and property mortgage (“Facility IV") of approximately
HK$14,892,000 as at 31 December 2019. As at 31 December 2019,
Facility IV was guaranteed by Hanvey Group Holdings Limited. Facility
IV bear interest ranged from 4.35% to 5.53% per annum for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out
on the loan agreement.

Annual Report 2019 ¥

27. 88 RITEX (8
Bt -

(a)

MR2018F K2019F 12 A31H 2R
SRERRRERE ((REID DA
#7891,000 7T &= ° 1 20184F 12 A
318 - MEIREREEERERAR
RN BERIKABREEL 17,024,000
BITHREEIRIR - 1A 2019F 12 A 31
A @& mEEERERER AR
HBREEL 17,348,000 7 TTHI A FIHER
{EHRIR - BE INE = 2018 F K% 2019F
AN BIEFESNEFNE375%
F4.25% REFE °

M2018F K2019F 128318 &
HER HMEER BEIRRERE
([REN]) 5 5 A& #%2,478,000/8 7T &
4,297,000787C <7 2018412 A318 »
BENHELERERNRKREHEBEREE
EREERATRHAFER 72019
F128318 BEIHEEEERERE
RAFHRE A BEREER - MENR
B E20184F M 2019412 A31 8 I
ENRHRFEFER3.6%E53%K%45%
E5.68%: 8 o

R2018F & 2019F 12 A31H « EH
B BT RFERE ((REM]) 5
Al A& #739,187,000 7% JT & 25,029,000
BT e R2018F 12 A31H » g &I
HEERSARNBHEERRERIAR2018
F12A31HEEE A% 24,231,000
BILTHME BMEELE EEE
A #714,800,000 8 TR IR E W ¥ &
21,701,000 78 JT K 88 77 17 SV 1 o
HR2019% 128318 & IHEESE
B AR AR A AR AR KA 2019
F12 A31 HEEEE#%23,422,000/%5
THYE BEEREZE FEEAD
14,200,000 (FI7E17) BILH IR EME
AR $R1717 546,718,000 (B 5E 23) i 7T
YR - BE IR E = 2018 4F &£ 2019
F12A31BIEFEDRIRFFNE2.4%
Z35%M3.5%F3.88%: 8 °

R2019F 128318 THER LB E
IR ([REIV]) £4914,892,000 7T °
MR2019F 12 A31H @EIVAHERES
EERERAABREER BEIVR
HZE201912 B 31 BILFEHERN X
4.35%ZE 5.53% 5 8 °

BEFORTRIE B R R PRt 818
HREHEE -
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28. LEASE LIABILITIES/OBLIGATION UNDER 28. HEBE WMEHERE
FINANCE LEASES
The Group leased its motor vehicles under lease liabilities/ AEERBEHEARG REHEHE
obligation under finance lease with lease term of three to five A E - HEA=ZRF - 12018
years. Interest rate underlying lease liabilities/obligation under F12H31HK2019F12A318 -
finance lease is variable at 5.1% and 4.22% per annum as at 31 HERE BMEMRSRENHEBTR
December 2018 and 31 December 2019 respectively. ER/AENE - DR REBF51% K

4.22% -

No arrangement has been entered into for contingent rental NEBEWET I AREHOLHE -
payments.

Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

BEEEMNR BREHEEMNRRE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R12A31H R12A31H
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019 20184 20194 20184
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FET FHT
Lease liabilities payables/ ENEERES
obligation under finance BB EAE
leases
Within one year 1R 2,427 790 2,289 769
Within a period of more than 14 A H1E BB
one year but not more 24
than two years 1,272 791 1,222 598
Within a period of more than 24 A F1E R BB
two years but not more 54
than five years 470 910 463 925
4,169 2,491 3,974 2,292
Less: future financial charge & : KRB EEF (195) (199) = -
Present value of lease HEAERE
obligation 3,974 2,292 3,974 2,292
Less: Amount due for AR 12 AR
settlement within twelve B ERAE T Y
months (shown under Gk A
current liabilities) BEET) (2,231) (687)
Amount due for settlement 1218 A & 2| Hi 4%
after twelve months (shown {894 %8 (FERH
under non-current liabilities) ~ Bf&HET) 1,743 1,605
The Group’s lease liabilities/obligation under the finance leases AEBMHEASE REAERER
are secured by the lessor’s charge over the motor vehicles. AR S E IR TR o
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. R A<
Movements of the share capital of the Company are as follows: RABRAEB T
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
Shares value share value
R EE HE e B [EEE)
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T FER T FHET
Authorised EE
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 TR L@
each 0.0187T
At 31 December R12A31H 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRER
At 1 January ®K1A1H 1,000,000 10,000 - -
Capitalisation issue (note (a) B A&{b317 (K7it(a)) = = 750,000 7,500
Issue of shares upon placing R BC&E R EETTARD
(note (b)) (Htzt b)) - - 250,000 2,500
At 31 December K12 A310 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
Notes: Mt

(a)

Annual Report 2019 4§

Pursuant to a resolution in writing passed by all the shareholders of
the Company on 20 June 2018, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$380,000 to HK$10,000,000 by
the creation of additional 9,962,000,000 shares. Pursuant to the
capitalisation issue of the Company passed by all the shareholders of
the Company on 20 June 2018, additional 749,999,999 shares were
allotted and issued to Million Easy Enterprises Ltd on 20 June 2018.

The Company was successfully listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 12 July 2018 by way of share offer of 25,000,000 public
offer share and 225,000,000 placing shares respectively at the offer
price of HK$0.25 per share, the net proceeds after deducting listing fee
were approximately HK$34,470,000.

)

(a)

(b)

BIBEARRZEREN2018F6 A 20
AEBENEMARER  AQRBRBE
5%9,962,000,000 % B 17 1% % 7E B 2N B
380,000 % 7T 4 % 10,000,000 7% 7T ° 18
BAARZEREN2018F6H20H
BBMARNBZEALET  EEEE
BMRAFMN2018% 6 7520 HEFEINEL
2 N %% 97749,999,999 % i 15 -

2018F 7 A 128 » AR A @BEMNU
BRBEMHO25B T EEE D A
3% £ 25,000,000 0% 2 B 3 &5 % ) K
225,000,000 A% fic & A& 19 A 11 7 B 22 B
GEM 71 - BBk LB AMFTS5KIE
SFEREY) 534,470,000 7T °
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30. RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

30. XD EfEE

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
B3 RE 25t E#R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
As at 1 January 2018 R2018F 1 A1 H - (4,918) (4,918)
Loss and total comprehensive FHNEBEREZEERE
loss for the year FEEE - (17,315) (17,315)
Capitalisation issue EAR LT (7,500) - (7,500)
Issue of new share by way of LARR (7 85 & 77 BT
share offer AR 60,000 - 60,000
Transaction cost attributable to BT IR EERR S
issue of new shares B 7K (10,156) - (10,156)
As at 31 December 2018 R2018%F 12 A31H
and 1 January 2019 &% 2019F 1818 42,344 (22,233) 20,111
Loss and total comprehensive loss  F R EE &2 HE 18
for the year FRE - (10,153) (10,153)
As at 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 42,344 (32,386) 9,958

At 31 December 2019, the Company had reserves of
approximately HK$9,958,000 available for distribution in
accordance with the Company law of Cayman Islands (2018:
HK$20,111,000).

MR2019% 12 A31H  BREHRSES
RNAEPEARR RIS 9,958,000 78
JC A 5 B2 (2018 4F © 20,111,000
JC) °©
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31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. KEHERAIE
The Group as lessee REBEREBEA
At the end of each reporting period, the Group had RERE R - REBERE T AT HEE
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- KEHENARRKERSER T
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: AT -
As at
31 December
12 A31H
2018
20184F
HK$'000
FET
Within one year 1R 1,105
More than one year, but not more than 1 LA 1B BB 5 F
five years 966
2,071
The Group leases PRC factory under non-cancellable operating AEBERBAITHELEEEEAS
leases. The leases run for an initial period of 2 to 5 years, with BIRE - xAIBER2ESF - A
options to renew the lease terms upon expiry when all terms D EAY BRI FT B IR A BB AE L -
are re-negotiated. None of these leases includes any contingent ZEROMESEEMIAES -
rentals.
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31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Investment property was leased for a term of 2 year. At the
end of each reporting period, the Group had contracted with a
tenant for the following future minimum lease payments:

31. KEHERIE @)

AEEFEAHAA
REMERBM/2F -NEMEHK
AEBEERA T RRKERENKE
HERTA

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2019 2018
2019 % 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Within one year 1R 312 90
More than one year, but not more than 14 A LB T B#E5F
five years 130 -
442 90

The Group leases investment properties under non-cancellable
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of 2 to 3
years, with options to renew the lease terms upon expiry when
all terms are re-negotiated. None of these leases includes any

contingent rentals.

AEBERBEAIRELLHERER
BWE  -&OERS2E3F  £HO
P ERPAA R AR BED -
ZERAOBESRTMANAEE -
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32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 32. EEHEA
At the end of each reporting period, the following assets were RERER - THEECER TR
pledged to bank secure the Group's banking facilities: TTURERAEBMRITHRE -

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2019 2018
2019 % 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Property, plant and equipment L E Yy 23,422 24,231
Financial asset at fair value through profit & A F{ET AB2EH
or loss TREE 17,348 16,851
Investment properties HEME 14,200 14,800
Pledged bank deposits EEABITIER 6,718 21,701
61,688 77,583
33. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 33. B EFIST &
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all REBAELELELEREBEE—
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme TS HI M NFES R - ZHEMBE
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under HAEBENEESEES  WERZ
the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant HANEEHES - NEBIREEEH
payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution matched by AN HI5% G ST 25 iR S Irie
employees but subject to a maximum amount of HK$1,500 per HHEED  eEeE AT A 1,500
month for each employee to the scheme. T o
Employees of the subsidiaries and an associate in the PRC are PEHEATIRBLEATES &
members of the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by BT EER B R A BE KD ST 2R
the PRC government. The subsidiaries and an associate were B f{BATIRBMAATERE TH
required to contribute a certain percentage of the payroll of BHETAS L ERKS2IHE
their staff to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only ERBRNES « NEBBBEKSD
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension scheme SEME S ERERETHET - £
is to make the required contributions. There were no forfeited 79 S 4 B FB SR U 4 2k A K S (R B
contributions utilised to offset employers’ contributions for the oo NGB DAREIR - W ESR U
year. And at the end of the Track Record Period, there was AR A R R FE TR R o

no forfeited contribution available to reduce the contributions
payable in the future years.
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34. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 3. FEFBERSF
(a) The Group entered into the following major non-cash (a) REBEFIVUTIRRGEERE
transactions which are not reflected in the consolidated MEARMOTEIRERS

statements of cash flows:

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group HZE2018F12A3MAIEFE
entered into finance leases in respect of an assets with a REBRZLEHERHREAE
total value of HK$2,090,000 at the inception of the finance 2,090,000 LK & EE] LAl &
leases. HE -

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial (b) MEEHMEEEBENEER
activities
Liabilities from financing activities BETEELHWARE

Lease Lease

liabilities/ liabilities/
obligation  obligation

under under
finance finance
lease lease Borrowing  Borrowing
due within due after  due within due after
one year one year one year one year Total

R-%FR R-F#
EEEY R
HERE/ MHERES R-Fa R-F#
MEHE - RMEMESR B R 2
3] 3 LB L st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TRT TAT TET TAT

Net debt as at 1 January 2018 A2018 1A 18K

BEFE (144) (486) (64,091) (22,000) (86,721)
Cash flows Beng - - 43,535 - 43,535
Acquisitions — lease liabilities WEEE-HEAHE (596) (1,253) - - (1,849)
Other non-cash movements HiFRe# 53 134 (22,000) 22,000 187
Net debt as at and R2018%F12A31H
31 December 2018 and %2019 181H
1 January 2019 MEKFE (687) (1,605) (42,556) - (44,848)
Cash flows, net Rene 38 2,402 351 267 = 3,020
Other non-cash movements Ef IR &8 (3,946) (489) = = (4,435)
Net debt as at ®2019%F12H31H
31 December 2019 HEXFE (2,231) (1,743) (42,289) - (46,263)
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35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. E XA XS

In addition to the transactions and balance disclosed elsewhere BRBTETHEREtm FIEENRS
in the Historical Financial Information, the Group entered into N#ser  REBEFTBBAIRS

related parties transactions:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

Name of related parties Notes Nature of transaction 2019 2018
B 5 &8 it RBHE 2019 % 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Recurring:
REM:
Mr. Cheuk (c) Rental expense 720 720
B4 MEMX
Smart Hill (@) Rental income 168 180
=S HEBA
Non-recurring:
FEREM
Million Easy (b) Interest income - 113
25 B A
Notes: Hiat -
(@ Smart Hill is connected person which is wholly-owned by the sister of (@) EBfAEREAT (RHEAANRKEE
Mrs. Cheuk. ®E) -
(b)  Mr. Cheuk and Mrs. Cheuk, directors of the Company, are the ultimate (b) ARAREZRLAREANKNABE DR
beneficial owner of the related company. HREBESEEA -
() Mr. Cheuk, a director of the Company. (0 BEE ARFAN—RESF-
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEEAEME
The directors of the Company are identified as key management ARARESRETAAEETEEEE
members of the Group and the compensation of directors and KE EERTIEEEEMS SN
key management is set out in Note 10 and 11. F10k110
Balances with connected person EREA TR
The connected person Smart Hill in which the transaction with MEBALESEMES  HEREZEN
Smart Hill falls under the definition of “continuing connected T HHEAGEM EmiHAIE 0= [ 1548
transaction” in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules with a AERS NESE B EXEERENFH
detailed disclosure of the relationship above. WEE o
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36. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 36. EAXEE

166

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the Track Record Period.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bills payables, bank overdraft, borrowings and
lease liabilities/obligation under finance leases disclosed in notes
24, 27 and 28, respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

AEMEREAA  E BB ELR
EERRARETRECE AR
REFERAD R - REEREIRN -
AEENBRER AT -

AEENEARERERFRAN -
BIED RN FE24 ~ 27 R 28 W B
JERER BiTEX  EREEES
&/ BEREAE CHBRES LR
SEEBYRARBEE AELEZ (B
BEBHITRAREE) -

RABEFTHRAELRGERE R
EREHH D KRAREFER
BAKRA R SBEREBER - I #
BBBEITHRD RBITHESIED
RBEEFFOEBEBERERE -
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36. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued) 36. EXREE (&)
The following is the gearing ratio at the end of each reporting SWMEMARERNBELERDOT -
period:

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Total borrowings (Note (a)) BIEFK (M7 (@) 84,934 78,921
Less: cash and cash equivalents B BeREEEEY
(Note (c)) (B () (28,908) (62,034)
Net debts (EOYES 56,026 16,887
Total equity (Note (b)) R (131 b)) 62,977 77,062
Gearing ratio BEEAR/LE 89% 21.9%
Notes: Bst -
(@)  Total borrowings represent bills payables, bank overdrafts, borrowings (@) #HEREENRE RTEX  BERK
and lease liabilities/obligation under finance leases. HEARE BMEMEHRE-
(b)  Total equity includes share capital and reserves at the end of each (b) MBEZVIESREPROBRARGERE -
reporting period.
() Cash and cash equivalents include pledge bank deposits and cash and (0 BeRkReEEMEIECERRITER
bank balances. MR RRITAEE -
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 37. €T A
Categories of financial instruments SRMIAEDE

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial asset at fair value 1R FEFTA B i
though profit or loss THEE 19,180 21,460
Financial assets measured at i3 7N =y
amortised cost: THEE
— Trade receivables — & SRl FIE 44,667 43,474
— Deposits and other receivables —R& R HAMEKFHIE 1,915 841
— Pledged bank deposits —BFIRITFR 6,718 21,701
— Cash and bank balances —IRE RIRITHER 22,190 40,333
94,670 127,809
Financial liabilities cRMERE
Financial liabilities measured at big 3l N =ik
amortised cost: =
— Trade and bills payables — B9 RNFERENZER 76,385 68,961
— Other payables and accruals —HibEMN B R ETER 7,939 5,913
- Bank overdrafts —RITEX 1,929 -
— Borrowings — & 42,289 42,556
— Lease liabilities/obligation under - HEERE RMAHERAE
finance lease 3,974 2,292
132,516 119,722
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. €M T A

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments and details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate borrowings and bank balances due to changes of
interest rates.

The directors of the Company consider the Group’s exposures
of the bank balances are not significant as interest bearing bank
balances are within short maturity period and thus they are not
included in sensitivity analysis.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy. However, management closely monitors its exposure
to future cash flow interest rate risk as a result of changes in
market interest rates will consider hedging changes in market
interest rates should the need arise.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, if the interest rate on all
variable-rate borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit
after income tax for the year would have been decreased/
increased by approximately HK$1,472,000 and HK$369,220
respectively.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of each
of the Period and had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for the borrowings in existence at that date. The 100
basis point increase or decrease represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the end of next reporting period.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
liabilities (including bank balances, trade receivables, other
receivables, deposits and prepayments, trade and bills payables,
other payables and accrued expenses, lease liabilities/obligation
under finance leases) denominated in currencies other than
functional currency of the respective group entity at the end of
each reporting period are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

37. €M T B (%)

™5 E ks ()

ExmEE
REREPRANEREERINEEE
MINEBINENAREEREERA
B (BRRITES BEHEUFHE K
i FE YRR ~ e RBNK - EHE
NHRERENRE - B EMNRER
[EEtER HEAE MEHEERE)
MBREELNT -

The following table details the Group’s sensitivities to a
10% increase and decrease in the functional currency of the
group entities against relevant foreign currency. 10% is the
sensitivity rate which represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign currency rate. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding RMB denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 10% change. A positive number indicates
an decrease in post-tax loss for the year HK$ strengths 10%
against RMB. For a 10% weakening of HK$ against RMB, there
would be an equal but opposite impact on the post-tax loss for
the year.

Assets Liabilities
=K
As at 31 December As at 31 December
MW12A31H M®12A31H
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184 2019 F 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET FExT FHT
RMB AR 759 809 1,399 1,372
Sensitivity analysis BT

TRHAMAEENEEERINEEE
SBERRINE L K T B 10% B 8K
JE ° 10% BREZ L KI5 E B B HIHMNE
[EREIER RE BB 2 7L - BURRED
TERBRAAREIENHARATFEE
BHEE - YR HmERIL10% WE
FREME -  FHRTBTHLARKE
THE10% BISF AR B IL BRI D - 8
TRARBEZE10% @ Al HFRR
MEBRERESEERTE -

As at 31 December

analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign currency risk
as the exposures at the end of each reporting period do not
reflect the exposure.

MW12A318
2019 2018
2019 % 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
RMB AR 1 36
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the sensitivity RATIEERE  BRESTFER

REAIINERR  AREREHRD
e Bz T~ BE 2 R [ B el B o
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. &M T A )

Market risk (Continued)

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from bank balances
and deposits, trade receivables, deposit and other receivables.
The carrying amounts of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties are reputable banks.
The existing counterparties do not have defaults in the past.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of cash at bank is assessed to
be close to zero and no provision was made as of 31 December
2019 and 2018.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the
use of the lifetime expected credit loss provision for all trade
receivables and contract assets. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics. The Group has
performed historical analysis and identified the key economic
variables impacting credit risk and expected credit loss. It
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, trade receivables that
are individually significant have been separately assessed for
impairment. The Group makes periodic assessments on the
recoverability of the receivables based on the background and
reputation of the customers, historical settlement records and
past experience.

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from individual
customers in relation to design and development,
manufacturing; and distribution of watch products. As at the
end of the year, the top three debtors and the largest debtor
accounted for approximately 43% and 67% (2018: 42%
and 51%), of the Group’s trade receivables balance. In view
of the history of business dealings with the debtors and the
sound collection history of the receivables due from them,
management believes that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding receivable balance due
from these debtors saved for the debtor related to the impaired
trade receivable disclosed in the below. Management makes
periodic assessment on the recoverability of the trade and other
receivables based on historical payment records, the length
of overdue period, the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the debtors.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade receivables
are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances individually or
based on provision matrix. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. There is no
adjustment for the provision of expected credit loss on the initial
application of HKFRS 9.

The directors considered the credit risk of the Group’s other
receivables is relatively low as they have a low risk of default and
the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(a) Provision of trade receivables

On that basis, the provision of trade receivables as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 was determined

37. 2R T & (@)
miE R (&)
EERE (&)
(a) B BN EREE
WA JA2019F 12 A31H
K 2018F 12 A3 HHE FREI

as follows: FOERERETOT -
Probability of default approach
BOBERE
Morethan ~ Morethan ~ Morethan ~ Morethan  More than
Tdaybut  91daysbut 181dayshut ~ 1Tyearbut 2 yearsbut
less than less than less than less than less than
No 90 days 180 days 365 days 2 years 3 years
31 December 2019 past due past due past due past due past due past due Total
AME  BENE BHWE Bz B8z
0195128318 Sk 0% 180% 365% Pk 3 st
- Group A -A4 0.68% 0.68% 0.68% 0.68% 2.11% 100.00% -
-Group B -B4 1.08% 1.08% 1.08% 1.08% 1.08% 100.00% -
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TET TET ThR TRT TR THT TERT
(Gross carrying amount BEEE
- Group A -AE 20,605 2,830 716 2,909 2,120 1 29,231
-Group B -84 10,384 1,439 m 894 2,847 - 15,837
ECL for group: UTEERREEER
- Group A -A4 140 20 5 2 45 1 31
-Group B -84l 112 15 3 9 3 = 170
Provision B 252 3 8 9 76 1 401

In valuation the expected credit loss of trade receivables,
gross carrying amount are classified to 2 main item. Group
A represent large corporate customer with long term
relationship, and Group B represent new customer and
medium size customer.

Annual Report 2019 55}

REHEE 2 EWFIAN TR H(E B EE
B BEREESBESMEETRER -
ARERRMEFHRENAREEE
P mBAEHEPLFILES -

173



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. €@ T B (&)
Market risk (Continued) miE Rk (&)
Credit risk (Continued) EEEE (&)
(@) Provision of trade receivables (Continued) @) EZEWIEREEE)

Probability of defautt approach
BOBER %

More than More than More than More than More than
Tdaysbut  9Tdaysbut 181 daysbut  Tyearshut  2yearshut

Jess than less than less than less than less than
No 90 days 180 days 365 days 2 years 3years
31 December 2018 past due past due past due past due past due past due Total
AE1E B9z BH8Z jak i BEZE
018% 12831 ES k] 90X 180K 365K 2% 3 h
-Group A A 0.56% 0.73% 133% 2.02% 2.88% 100.00% -
- Group B -B4 112% 146% 2.58% 3.25% 10.81% 100.00% -

HKDOOO  HKDOOO  HKDOOO  HKDOOO  HKDOOO  HKDOOO  HKD'OOO
ThL T ThRL T T Tk TAL

(Gross carrying amount BEAE

-Group A -A 25,620 4,85 248 1918 25 - 32,667

- Group B -B4 8,355 520 705 1,621 - - 11,201

ECL for group: UTEAREREERS:

- Group A -A# 144 35 3 39 1 - 222

-GroupB -84 9% 8 18 5 - - 1m

Provision il 38 3 2 91 1 - 3%
In valuation the expected credit loss of trade receivables, REHEE ZEBGRENTEREEESE
gross carrying amount are classified to 2 main item. Group - SEEE > BEAMEEXEES -
A represent large corporate customer with long term ABIEERHAGIEFHEANARELER
relationship, and Group B represent new customer and PomBABHERPRFAIERS -

medium size customer.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. €@ T B ()
Market risk (Continued) THIEEE (8)
Credit risk (Continued) EEmE (&)
(a) Provision of trade receivables (Continued) () BSMENZIE R E)
The reconciliation of provision of trade receivables as at 31 M2019F12A31H - EFEHK
December 2019 was as follows: SIEBE RS ENT
HK$'000
FHT
As at 1 January 2018 201851 A1 H -
Provision for the year FNEE 394
As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 M20184F 12 A31H X 20194 1 A1 H 394
Provision for the year FRBRE 7
As at 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 401
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk

For the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank loans and bank
overdrafts and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for their non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group has required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with
a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest time
band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest cash flows are at floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from current interest rates at
the end of each reporting period.

37. €M T B (%)

miE R (E)

FEELERE
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RNEFREEERAEEGENRE LR
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

37. &M T A )

Market risk (Continued) miE Rk (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEE (E)
Weighted Morethan  More than
average  Ondemand  fyearbut  2yearsbut Total
effective or within less than less than Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1year 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
ik 37 REXY  HE-F  HERE AERRE
LTk -Eh BORWE  BOREF BENE REEE REE
% HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
Thn ThR Tén Tén Tén Tén
As at 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31R
Trade payables EAENTE - 39,643 - - - 39,643 39,643
Bills payables ERZE 4% 36,907 - - - 36,907 36,742
Other payables, and accrued EHERTUER
eXpenses JETER - 7939 - - - 7939 7939
Borrowings &3 35% 44,781 - - - 44,781 $,289
Bank overdraft RITEX 6% 1,935 - - - 1,935 1929
Lease liabites/obligation under ~ BEBE/BE
finance leases HERE 5% 2427 1212 470 - 4,169 3974
133,632 1212 470 - 135,374 132,516
Weighted More than More than
average  On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
effective or within less than less than Over  undiscounted Carying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
mEws eyen #a-F BAmF AERRL
-y —ER BIRWE  BOREF RENE REQE REfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T T T T TEL
As at 31 December 2018 R2018%F12A31A
Trade payables BARENE - 34,888 - - - 34,888 34,888
Bills payables EREE 27% 35,246 - - - 35,246 34,073
Other payables and accrued EfERFER
eXpenses JEHTER - 5913 - - - 5913 5913
Borrowings &3 34% 4979 - - - 4979 42,556
Obligation under finance leases ~ BYATEH 5.1% 790 791 910 - 2491 229
119,816 791 910 - 121517 119,722
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. €@ T B ()
Market risk (Continued) s Rk ()
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEE (E)
The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank TRE MR ESKEZENRITERRE
borrowings with repayable on demand clause based on agreed e E e ol hd eI E Lk
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements. The DT o« ZFVABRERAE O KT
amount includes interest payments computed using contractual HEHFEMR - KEEREEMI T
rates. Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the R ARREEBRBIRIT KA 8
directors of the Company do not consider that it is probable that TR RIEHEZREIREE - RARE
the bank will exercise its discretion to immediate repayment. The EHREABARITEREREER HE
directors of the Company believe that such bank borrowings will Fré&mst &l B BAEE o

be repaid in accordance with the scheduled dates set out in the
loan agreements.

Maturity Analysis - bank borrowing
subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

AP -ARBENBBAREEIREBNRTER

More than More than

one year two years
Within  butless than  but less than More than
one year two years five years five years

BRA-F BAmEF
—-fr  EBIRWE  EBIREF EFHE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET

At 31 December 2019 R2019% 12 A31H 39,986 4,232 - -
At 31 December 2018 2018 12 A31H 42,556 - - -
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. €@ T B ()
Market risk (Continued) miE Rk (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEE (E)
Borrowings with repayment on demand clauses are included REREENERER LB BT
in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in the above R ERke —F R T o R20195
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 12 A31BX2018F 12 A31H %=
2018, the aggregate carrying amounts of these borrowings BREREED 5 /744,218,000 7T
amounted to HK$44,218,000 and HK$42,556,000, respectively. 142,556,000 7T < £&E EAKEH
Taken into account the Group’s financial position, the directors SR - RRREEREERAT
of the Company do not believe that it is probable that the RATBETE BV E SR BIE R « R
lenders will exercise their discretionary rights to demand NAIEERABHARITERBREE
immediate repayment. The directors of the Company believe R EATEGTEE R B HEE - B
that such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with BN

the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements,
details of which are set out in the table below:

Weighted Morethan ~ More than
average  Ondemand  fyearbut  2yearsbut Total
effective or within less than less than Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1year 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
ik 37 REXY  HB-F  HERE AERRE

BRAZ -Eh BOREE  BOREE ZENE  REHR REE
% HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TERL T TEn - TR TERL

As at 31 December 2019 R20198128318
- Variable-rate -ByHE 35% 40,534 4244 - - 44,178 44,218
Weighted More than More than
average  On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
effective or within less than less than Over  undiscounted Carying
interest rate 1 year 1 years 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
T ESE il 3 BRmE AERRS
ERHE —ER AEOREE  EORRE REHE MELE EE
% HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT Thn Thn AL TR ThI
As at 31 December 2018 R20185 128318
- Variable-rate -RHHE 34% 42979 - - - 4,979 42,556
The amount included above for variable interest rate W BN BB E RIR S REARE
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to EZMEME - LAETESREE
change if changes in variable rates differ to those estimates of FEAERTAZSBENEEY -

interest rates determined at the end of each reporting period.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

—  the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded on active
liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted
market prices; and

—  the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The carrying amount of other financial assets and liabilities
carried at amortised cost, approximate their respective fair
values due to the relatively short-term nature of these financial
instruments.

For financial reporting purpose, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the input to the fair value measurements in its
entirety.

The table below gives the information about how the fair
value of these financial assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and input used).

The different level are defined as follows:

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

e level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the assets
or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

37. €@ I B @)
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MBS ) B2 AR
B2 ATFENE -

o FEIRRFEFERERMBES
EMEZATERE  BEEH
BELBBIIFERATBENS
R ABE (TABEHA
gug) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. €E® T A ()
Fair value measurements (Continued) NEEFE(E)
Fair value Fair value
31 December 31 December  Fair value Valuation technique
Financial assets 2019 2018  hierarchy and key input(s)
20195 20184
12A31H 12A31H EETER
TREE W FE WAFE AFESR BEBDARE
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Club memberships 440 440  Level 2 Market approach-
Reference to
Quoted price in
Active market
BLHes FE2 Mg E—2ZFRMI5R
B
Life insurance policies 17,348 17,024 Level 2 Redemption value quoted
by the insurance company
AEBRE F2 RER AP EE B
Held for trading securities 1,392 3,996  Level 1 Quoted price in active
presented as financial assets market
measure at FVTPL
SRR A EABENE F— h R T 5 W (E

MEENFIEFEERES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37.

e M| RME

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements (Continued)

There were no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 during the
Track Record Period.

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period.

The above table gives information about how the fair value of
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the Group’s consolidated statements of financial position
approximate of their fair values.

37

.EMI A
DNFEFE(B)
AEGEREE - F1REE2H/ 2B
R o

AEERBH SBAENEHEHR
BATENE -

EREBIMAEELZTEREERTF
BERER (CHEEMABETTERE
ABE) °

EEAR RAKEHEUBHRREK
BREERATIENEREERERA
BERRREEERFERS -

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. (B X B RE1R
At the date of this report, the Company has direct and indirect RAWEBRH - RRFRUATHBR
equity interests in the following subsidiaries: AR EEREERE
Attributable equity
interest held
by the Company
FREREREEE
As at 31 December
R12A31R
Issued and fully Atthe
paid share capital/ date
Principal place  Place and date of registered capital at of this Principal
Name of subsidiaries of business incorporation Legal entity the date of this report 2019 2018 report  activities Notes
RERERACEAR s
KELRER IEEFNE  HEMAINEREN RER SRRE/ERES 09 018F B IEEH 4
% % %
Directly held:
BERE:
Beyond Blossom Investments BV BVI, 9 May 2017 Limited liability Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 100 Investmentholding 3/
Limited Company
BERERRAA EBARREE EBAARER BREELA BRI REER
W17E5R9A

182
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. B X A& 1E ()
Attributable equity
interest held
by the Company
ARARERERE
As at 31 December
R12A3NA
Issued and fully Atthe
paid share capital/ date
Principal place  Place and date of registered capital at of this  Principal
Name of subsidiaries of business incorporation Legal entity the date of this report 2019 2018 report  activities Notes
RERERHCRAR 55
KEARZR ITEENY  HMAUHERAN  REER HERE/HRER W95 2018% BE  IERR it
% % %
Indirectly held:
RERE
Precise Time Global Limited BYI BVI, 10 May 2017 Limited liability Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 100 Investment holding (@)
company
ERRRERLA EBARREE HBAARER EREERA LERIET RERRK
17557108
Big Hope Investment Limited BVI BVI, 9 May 2017 Limited liability Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 100 Investmentholding 3/
company
EARABRAA EBARREE EBAARER ERERLA Bl e REER
01755898
Diamond Fountain Investment BV BVI, 9 May 2017 Limited liability Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 100 Investmentholding 3/
Limited company
BRRERRAA ABEBREE HEERREE ERERAT Bl e REER
W175589R
Vst Peak Enterprises Limited BV BVI, 21 September 2011 Limited liabilty Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 100 Investmentholding 3/
company
ERbRERAA ABREREE HEBEBREE BREERA el RELR
WI1E9R21A
Talent Gift International Limited BV BVI, 3 January 2017 Limited liability Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 100 Investmentholding 3/
company
[EBERERAA ABEEREE HBEARES BREERA Lakxn ALK
W17E1A38
3 Wells Watch Industries Limited  Hong Kong Hong Kong, Limited liability Ordinary capital 100 100 100 Trading and ol
2 September 1986 company HK$1,000,000 Distribution of
watches
SHERERLA Bk B 19659828 ARERLR EEmRA EFEARAH
1,000000%7
Cheer China Group Holdings ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong, Limited liability Ordinary capital HK$1 100 100 100 Investmentholding (&)
Limited 3 August 2011 company
PEEEERERLT Ei BE 0NFSA3E  EREEAT  ERRMER RERR
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. B X A& 1E ()
Attributable equity
interest held
by the Company
FRAREREEE
As at 31 December
R12A318
Issued and fully Atthe
paid share capital/ date
Principal place  Place and date of registered capital at of this  Principal
Name of subsidiaries of business incorporation Legal entity the date of this report 2019 2018 report  activities Notes
REREEHCEAR 15E
KELRER ITEFNE  HEMAINEREN  RER HRRE/ERES W9 2018%F B IEEH 4
% % %
Cheer Wells Trading Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong, Limited liability Ordinary capital 100 100 100 Investmentholding (&)
2 February 2015 company HK$10,000
BHEHERLA Bk B WF2R28 ARERLR LERA100003T ALK
Creative Profit Investment Hong Kong Hong Kong, Limited liability Ordinary capital 100 100 100 Investmentholding (5
Limited 22 May 2008 company HK$10,000
ENRERRAA B BE W8FSANE BREELT  ERRA0000ET RERR
3 Wells Catering Culture Limited  Hong Kong Hong Kong, Limited liability Ordinary shares HK$100 100 - 100 Investmentholding (5
23 July 2019 company
SHBRULERLT Bk B W09F1ABE AREMLH Bak00ET REZR
Shenzhen 3 Wells Watch PRC PRC, 8 August 2005 Registered as a wholly Registered capital 100 100 100 Manufacturing of ol
Company Limited Foreign Owned HK$10,000,000 watches
Enterprise under
PRC law
RIZHEEERLT e RE- 00568780 BEMELEIMA AHER EREE
NEBALE 10,000,007
Shenzhen Fujing Precision PRC PRC, 24 September 2019 Registered as a wholly Registered capital 100 - 100 Manufacturing of b
Technology Company Limited Foreign Owned RMB19,000,000 watches
Enterprise under
PRC law
RIBARZNEERRR 28 RE-2019598UR REPELEINA AMERARE BHEE
NEBALE 19,000,0007¢
Shenzhen Fuyang Precision PRC PRC, 26 September 2019 Registered as a wholly Registered capital 100 - 100 Manufacturing of b
Technology Company Limited Foreign Owned RMB10,000,000 watches
Enterprise under
PRC law
RIBZRENRERAA  7E hE019%F9A268 REFDEEEMA SRHERARY BRrE

NEBELE 10,000,000
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B|RME

All subsidiaries now comprising the Group have adopted 31
December as their financial year end date.

Notes:

(@  No audited financial statements have been prepared since its date of

incorporation as it is incorporated in a jurisdiction where there is no

statutory audit requirement.

(b)  The audited statutory financial statements of the Company’s
subsidiaries incorporated/established in Hong Kong and in the PRC
were prepared in accordance with the relevant accounting principles
and financial regulations applicable to enterprises incorporated/
established in Hong Kong and in the PRC were audited by:

Name of Subsidiaries

MEQE BB

Financial year

MBEFEE

38. Mt B A B & 15 (&)

AEERBFETATENE QRS R
12A3MBAVMBFEFLEH -

(a)

(b)

M A SZ AT E RLE R I SR R
VAR R B B ISR

ARARIREE R B MRS PRI
& A R BRLORE M BIHMRIIRE
BRAREEE RP MK R e
EHEAEHRAINMERERE &
AT EBMER

Name of auditor

REE BB

3 Wells Watch Industries Limited
=HEEBRRAR

Cheer China Group Holdings
Limited
BEEETERERAT

Cheer Wells Trading Limited
BIESHERRAF

Creative Profit Investments Limited

EMEAEBRAF

3 Wells Catering Cuture Limited
ZHHRRULERRAA

Shenzhen 3 Wells Watch Company
Limited
AN=HEEBRRAF

Shenzhen Fujing Precision
Technology Company Limited
RYBHBER AR QA

Shenzhen Fuyang Precision
Technology Company Limited
RYBHIBERRBR QA

Annual Report 2019 55}

Year ended 31 December 2018 and 2019
HZE2018F RK2019F 12 A31BIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2018 and 2019

HZE2018F K 2019F 12 A31 BHILFE

Year ended 31 December 2018 and 2019
HZE2018F X2019F 12 A31BILFE

Year ended 31 December 2018 and 2019
HE2018F K2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 A31 BILFE

Year ended 31 December 2018 and 2019

HE2018F M2019F 12 A31HIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12 A31 BILFE

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12 A31 BILFE

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
B etmEEMAERAR

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
BEEaEHERERAR

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
BEetmEEMAERAR

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
B AEBA AR AR

HLB Hodgson Impley Cheng Limited
BEestmEEMAERAR

Shenzhen Yida Certified Public
Accountants Co. Ltd.
ANTEREGAMEBAEREELA

Shenzhen Yida Certified Public
Accountants Co. Ltd.
AT EEGHMNEBAEREEAA

Shenzhen Yida Certified Public
Accountants Co. Ltd.
AT EREGHMEEABEREEAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

39. XD T B AR R &R

As at 31 December

HZ12A31H
2019 2018
As at 31 December 2019 BZ2019F12831H 20195 20184
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TR FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in subsidiary RBREIMEE - -
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables and prepayments Hofth JE U R IE R FE T AR 1,722 2,960
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries B EVNGIE S 33,239 1,644
Bank balances and cash BITEBR RS 2,109 26,594
37,070 31,198
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued expenses Hin T RBRESER 949 1,087
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries TR 2T B A R 5 E 16,163 -
17,112 1,087
Net current (liabilities)/asset BRE(AE) EE 19,958 30,111
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERADEE 19,958 30,111
Net (liabilities)/asset F (BB EE 19,958 30,111
Capital and reserves BEARGHE
Share capital N 29 10,000 10,000
Reserves G 30 9,958 20,111
Total equity R 19,958 30,111

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 April 2020
and signed on its behalf by: REE

CHEUK Sin Cheong Clement AU Corona Ching Mei

BEEE BEx

Executive Director Executive Director

HiITEE HiTEE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Mist Rz E4R

consolidated financial statements.

BEEEN2020%4 A 29 B ERIZRE
TR A MG ®RER B THALR

BMBHRER ZEKED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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40. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a)

On 26 March 2020, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into a non-legally binding memorandum of understanding
(the “MOU") with the shareholders (the “Vendors”) of
Innovative Corporate Development Limited (£ 8] 7> 3
B B BR A 7F]) (the “Target Company”, together with its
sub5|d|arles, the “Target Group”), pursuant to which the
Company intends to acquire and the Vendors intend to sell
51% of the issued share capital of the Target Company.
The Target Group is principally engaged in the business
of production and sale of disposable face masks in Hong
Kong (the “Intended Transaction”).

The coronavirus disease 2019 outbreak since early
2020 has brought additional uncertainties in the
global macroeconomic situation. The Group’s financial
performance may have impact. The degree of impact could
not be reasonably estimated at this stage. The Group will
closely monitor the development of the epidemic and
assess its impact on the financial position and operating
results of the Group.

41. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Directors on 29 April 2020.
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40 Tﬁ = % IE\

(a

41. RRET B4R

MR2020F3 H268 - KA —
FMBARRERTEERER
REI(BERR]  HEMBA
AEBIEREED KRR (&
7 1) TR B EE KR I A 3
HE=s (=) - xﬁiﬁﬁ
WEMEFEELEBIREAR
TR A 51% ° EM%IIK%
BEEBLEERBERTAER
S([BEMRS]) -

B 2020 F ¥ LA 2K+ 2019 4 & #k
AEERANBED ASREEL
BRI KRBT HEE R -
AEENHBRARGIHE -
MEFENRERREELLE

fbEt o ARBEBIDEBEHEN

BR WA EREYAREG

RN R S BN E -
CLEEES

EEN20205F 4 A 29 B E REBRET

S

RAEBMB®mE -
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The following is a summary of the published results and assets and NTAAEERBE=EAYREFECER
liabilities of the Group for the last three financial years. The financial MEREEERBERE - BZE 2019512
information for the year ended/as at 31 December 2019 is extracted A31BIFE 72019412 A31 BHE
from the consolidated financial statements in this annual report. BERBSE AT RS T IEHRE -

Results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December

AEBEBZ12AMBLEE 2448

2019 2018 2017 2016
2019 2018 2017 F 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET
Revenue Y 2= 198,050 182,478 174,817 151,892
(Loss)/profit before BRELAT (B])
taxation i A (13,873) (4,501) 6,016 5,902
Income tax expenses FSHEx (675) (2,603) (2,056) (1,835)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EBR) ER (14,548) (7,104) 3,960 4,067
Other comprehensive FRHEMEE
income/(loss) for the year WA~ (E18) 463 (78) 490 (1,103)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ R ZME (&),
income for the year PN L] (14,085) (7,182) 4,450 2,964

Assets and liabilities of the Group
as at 31 December

REER12AMBZEERAERE

2019 2018 2017 2016

2019 20184 2017 5 2016 4F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHETT FHETT FHETT

Non-current assets ERBEE 52,975 51,070 51,439 57,505
Current assets REEE 146,643 150,903 132,601 123,540
Total assets EEHAE 199,618 201,973 184,040 181,045
Current liabilities REBEE 134,898 123,306 129,654 153,578
Non-current liabilities kFBEE 1,743 1,605 22,486 17

Net assets EEFRE 62,977 77,062 31,900 27,450
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